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10240

(c/0 Harneys Services (Cayman) Limited, 4th Floor
Harbor Place, 103 South Church Street, PO Box 10240

Grand Cayman

13

13

03(6550)8301
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B1

B2

B3

B4

B1

B2

B3

B4

B1

B2
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B4
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165,013,338
(21,263,619)

2,037,991
( 262,616)

2,037,991
( 262,616)

860,817,172
(110,924,901)

788,334,538
(101,584,789)

2,422,110 2,315,678
538,487 525,366
9,680 9,444
28,858,314 28,155,103
860,817,172 | 788,334,538

(110,924,901)

(101,584,789)

968,772,483
(124,836,022)

1,196,274,858

(154,151,978)

317.36 303.40
(40,895) (39,096)
116.74 111.60
(15,043) (14,381)
102.49 102.15
(13,207) (13,163)
0.97 0.92
(125) (119)
N/A .
N/A .
N/A .
N/A .
88.86 65.90
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B1

B2

B3

B4

B1

B2

B3

B4

B1

B2

B3

B4
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165,013,338
(21,263,619)

88,176,243
(11,362,391)

2,037,991 98,364,692
( 262,616) |( 12,675,274)

2,037,991 98,364,692

( 262,616) | ( 12,675,274)
860,817,172 | 726,936,483

(110,924,901)

(93,673,035)

2,422,110 2,315,677
538,487 525,365
9,680 9,444
28,858,314 28,155,094
860,817,172 | 726,936,483
(110,924,901) | (93,673,035)
968,772,483 | 832,472,464

(124,836,022)

(107,272,402)

317.36 279.77
(40, 895) (36,051)
116.74 102.91
(15,043) (13,261)
125.22 107.10
(16,136) (13,801)
0.97 0.85
(125) (110)
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
88.86 87.32
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0.24 | 13.53
) 11 12 13
2022
B4
11
2019 12 31 942,852,570 121,495,982 765,983,487 98,704,632 0.98 126
12
2000 12 31 968,772,483 124,836,022 860,817,172 110,924,901 0.97 125
13
2021 12 31 1,196,274,858 154,151,978 788,334,538 101,584,789 9;92 119_
2021 1,192,506,988 153,666,450 870,323,987 112,149,949 0.98 126
978,987,549 126,152,336 871,889,430 112,351,672 0.98 126
1,239,319,448 159,698,704 860,452,017 110,877,847 0.98 126
1,228,328,038 158,282,351 821,742,634 105,889,756 0.93 120
1,191,053,426 153,479,144 820,745,742 105,761,296 0.94 121
10 1,180,610,514 152,133,471 787,344,626 101,457,229 0.92 119
11 1,171,510,807 150,960,883 787,946,398 101,534,773 0.92 119
12 1,196,274,858 154,151,978 788,334,538 101,584,789 9;92 119_
2022 1,199,376,122 154,551,607 753,755,856 97,128,980 0.92 119
1,206,979,995 155,531,442 754,060,420 97,168,226 0.92 119
1,227,525,930 158,178,991 754,201,568 97,186,414 0.92 119
1,215,823,605 156,671,030 729,149,480 93,958,202 0.92 119
) 13

B4
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2022
B4
11
942,852,570 121,495,982 765,983,487 98,704,632 0.98 126
2019 12 31
12
968,772,483 124,836,022 860,817,172 110,924,901 0.97 125
2020 12 31
13
832,472,464 107,272,402 726,936,483 93,673,035 0.85 110
2021 12 31 — -
2021 1,192,506,988 153,666,450 870,323,987 112,149,949 0.98 126
978,987,549 126,152,336 871,889,430 112,351,672 0.98 126
1,239,319,448 159,698,704 860,452,017 110,877,847 0.98 126
1,228,328,038 158,282,351 821,742,634 105,889,756 0.93 120
1,191,053,426 153,479,144 820,745,742 105,761,296 0.94 121
10 1,180,610,514 152,133,471 787,344,626 101,457,229 0.92 119
11 1,171,510,807 150,960,883 787,946,398 101,534,773 0.92 119
12 832,472,464 107,272,402 726,936,483 93,673,035 0.85 110
2022 1,199,376,122 154,551,607 753,755,856 97,128,980 0.92 119
1,206,979,995 155,531,442 754,060,420 97,168,226 0.92 119
1,227,525,930 158,178,991 754,201,568 97,186,414 0.92 119
1,215,823,605 156,671,030 729,149,480 93,958,202 0.92 119
()
B4
( )
10
()
B4
11
2.00
(2019 2019 12 31 )
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12
1.02
(2020 2020 12 31 )
13
5.15
(2021 2021 12 31 )
« ) () 100x( )
( )
( )
13 11
)
B4
11
2.00
(2019 2019 12 31 )
12
1.02
(2020 2020 12 31 )
13
12.37
(2021 2021 12 31 ) —
« ) () 100x( )
( )
( )
11
2021 12 31
IFRS

38 59 131
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SPC
2021 12 31
( )
2021 2020
5 638,881,673 82,326,292 748,407,557 96,439,798
123,785,261 15,950,969 153,378,209 19,764,316
5
4 46,337,408 5,971,038 58,025,606 7,477,180
4(a) 15,257,647 1,966,100 4,615,950 594,811
17(e) 4,848,194 624,738 2,843,821 366,455
6 3,362,281 433,264 1,501,340 193,463
832,472,464 107,272,402 968,772,483 124,836,022
8(a) 93,634,723 12,065,770 104,106,198 13,415,125
14 6,898,986 889,003
8(b) 3,560,277 458,777 1,789,950 230,653
7 1,441,995 185,815 2,059,163 265,344
105,535,981 13,599,367 107,955,311 13,911,121
726,936,483 93,673,035 860,817,172 110,924,901

2022 29
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(

)

SPC
2021 12 31
(
2021 2020

9(a) 113,181,355 14,584,549 125,760,914 16,205,551
9(c) 2,172,690 279,973 7,154,918 921,983
9(c)  (29,325,427)  (3,778,875) 30,979,841 3,992,062
9(b) 1,529,665 197,113 205,745 26,512
10 617,960 79,630 911,920 117,510
88,176,243 11,362,391 165,013,338 21,263,619
5 157,366,365 20,278,230 132,614,182 17,088,663
17(a) 16,438,634 2,118,282 17,079,472 2,200,861
11 9,798,477 1,262,632 15,308,587 1,972,665
12 2,937,459 378,521 2,049,088 264,045
186,540,935 24,037,665 167,051,329 21,526,234
(98,364,602)  (12,675,274)  (2,037,991) (262,616)
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SPC
2021 12 31
( )
2021 2020
860,817,172 110,924,901 765,983,487 98,704,632
204,021,057 26,290,153
(35,515,997)  (4,576,591) (107,149,381) (13,807, 269)
(98,364,692) (12,675,274)  (2,037,991) (262,616)
726,936,483 93,673,035 860,817,172 110,924,901
SPC
2021 12 31
( )
2021 2020
15 (18,758,133) (2,417,173)  (18,645,406) (2,402,647)
42,398,043 5,463,412 24,110,110 3,106,829
2,550,477 328,654 (53,841,182) (6,937,975)
(1,860,942) (239,801) (1,221,111) (157,352)
(2,004,373) (258,284) (2,843,821) (366, 455)
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« ) (617,168) (79,528) (4,118,585) (530,721)
8(a) 7,285,585 938,820 67,216,383 8,661,503
(10,641,697) (1,371,289) (4,615,950) (594,811)
1,770,327 228,124
8(a)  (25,222,968) (3.250,232)  (106,115,595) (13,674,056)
(5,100,849) (657,295) (100,075,157) (12,895,685)
22,942,832 2,956,413 19,625,190 2,528,902
1,419,399 182,904 115,425 14,874
8(a) (2,332,569) (300,575) (9,780,787) (1,260,352)
(
)
16,928,813 2,181,447 (90,115,329) (11,612,261)
204,021,057 26,290,153
11 (28,617,011) (3,687,588)  (106,720,615) (13,752,018)
(31,423,775) (4,049,268)
( )
(28,617,011) (3,687,588) 65,876,667 8,488,867
(11,688,198) (1,506,141) (24,238,662) (3,123,394)
58,025,606 7,477,180 82,264,268 10,600,574
46,337,408 5,971,038 58,025,606 7,477,180
SPC
2021 12 31
SPC 2008 24
(Segregated Portfolio Company)
2021 12 31 2020
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b POCI

2.0 LIBOR
20
LIBOR

@

(b)

16/143



@
IFRS

(b)

FVOCI

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

IFRS

FVOCI
SPP1
SPPI

SPPI
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13

©

ECL

ECL 12
12
ECL

ECL

IFRS

SICR

SICR

18/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

SICR
PRM SICR
PD EAD
LGD
ECL
ECL ECL
ECL
12
PD EAD LGD
PD 12 12M PD Lifetime

PD
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EAD
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ECL
LGD
LGD
LGD
ECL PD LGD
PD 12WPD S P
S P
S P
12 EAD
PD LGD
PD LGD
LGD
LGD
20 50
ECL
SICR ECL
PD EAD LGD

LGD
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EAD
EAD ECL
ECL
LGD
LGD
PD ECL



(D

2021

GDP

2020

GDP

17.45
(9.58)
(13.32)

14.76
0.63
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ECL
21.82 13.09
0.87 (20.03)
(7.49) (19.15)
22.25 2.94
2.65 (2.16)
13.45 5.92
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ECL
ECL 12 ECL
©
SICR
2021 2020 12 31
®
) ()
PRM
0 2020 0
2021 12 31 7,331,447

2020 12,439,972
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Bl B2 B3 B4

B2 B3 B4
2021 13 Bl

2021 12 31

2020 31

12

2021

2021
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2021

4(a).
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4,084
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2021 2020
( ) ( )
13,171,261 45,311,536
28,137,917 12,629,858
5,028,230 84,212
46,337,408 58,025,606
2020 4,203
2021 2020
( ) ( )
15,257,647 4,615,950
2021 2020
( ) ( )
1,020,895,698 980,386, 664
(382,014,025) (231,979, 107)
638,881,673 748,407,557
123,785,261 153,378,209

762,666,934

901,785,766
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ECL

FVTPL

ECL

2021
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1,020,895,698 980,386,664
(93,634,723) (104,106,198)
927,260,975 876,280,466
123,785,261 153,378,209
123,785,261 153,378,209
1,051,046,236 1,029,658,675
ECL
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
48,843,976 76,764,027 801,652,972 927,260,975
(2,207,314) (4,031,096) (375,775,615) (382,014,025)
14,751,286 109,033,975 123,785,261
61,387,948 72,732,931 534,911,332 668,468,791
POCI
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
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ECL

FVTPL

ECL

2020

ECL

FVTPL

ECL

2020

ECL

FVTPL

ECL
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621,186,012 120,130,246 60,336,714 801,652,972
(248,435,567) (76,856,301) (50,483,746) (375,775,615)
109,033,975 109,033,975
372,750,444 152,026,210 9,852,968 534,911,332
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
75,475,506 96,453,749 695,663,984 8,687,227 876,280,466
(2,832,697) (5,370, 666) (223,324,065) (451,680) (231,979,107)
12,155,400 141,222,809 153,378,209
84,798,209 91,083,083 613,562,728 8,235,547 797,679,568
POCI
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
506,990,005 147,262,967 41,411,012 8,687,227 704,351,211
(164,498,987) (25,803,497) (33,021,581) (451,680) (223,775,745)
141,222,809 141,222,809
342,491,018 262,682,279 8,389,431 8,235,547 621,798,275
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12
ECL
ECL
A.
B.
2020
2021 3
2022

2021 12 31 51,211,054 2020
47,291,623 4,832,962

18 2021 12
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72,319,939
429,702

1PO
10
70,644,872
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72,593,593 2020 64,593,207
2021 12 31
2020 81,192,894
2019
15.5
2021 12 31
2020 62,723,458
2021 12 2021 12 31
34,598,788 2020 29,405,740
2021 12 31
9,912,619 2020 9,503,183

2021
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25,525,590 2020 22,882,027

2021 12 31

64,631,784 2020 53,498,483

53 40

21,157,369 2020

198,590,403 2020

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

2021 12 12 24

2021 12 31
18,281,213

156,626,335

198,590,403 74,497,647 1-4 121,742,685
2,350,071
SPV
2021
12 31 109,033,975 2020 141,222,809

8,103,033
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100
Eskom
Eskom
2021 12 31 24,118,322
2020 21,756,312 860,927
10
10
2021 12 31 26,728,802
2020 23,626,506
11
50
2021 12 31
57,594,775 2020 49,687,723
2021 12 31
9,852,968 2020 8,389,431
2021 2020
( ) ( )

ECL 231,979,107 113,263,380
31/143



ECL
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12 31

**ECL

2021

STF

STF

FVTPL

2021 12 31

2020

ECL
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* (7,331,447) (12,379,900)
*k (1,518,555)
157,366,365 132,614,182
382,014,025 231,979,107
7,331,447 2020 12,379,900
2020
2020 1,518,555
12 POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
75,475,506 96,453,749 665,244,228 39,106,953 876,280,466
7,961,557 9,362,165 84,906,564 102,230,286
(11,408,582) (1,638,817) 52,154,352 (39,106,953)
107,847,900 41,416,365 149,264,265
(131,032,406) (27,413,070) (34,737,120) (193,182,596)
(7,331,447) (7,331,447)
48,843,976 76,764,027 801,652,972 927,260,975
12
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
186,825,621 1,872,280 570,969,015 26,927,399 786,594,315
23,796,088 292,161 78,458,911 3,375,888 105,923,048
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2021

12 31

2020

12 31
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(123,772,553) 93,986,138
2,008,228 2,785,156
(31,009,903) (580, 240) (32,190,887)
51,360,802 7,724,877 8,823,794 73,956,673
(33,581,943) (6,841,467) (20,128) (33,383,528)
(17,677,215) (17,677,215)
(150,834) (9,727,096)
75,475,506 96,453,749 665,244,258 39,106,953 876,280,466
12
42,405,142) (61,701,056) (104,106,198)
14,253,630 17,149,458 62,231,635 93,634,723
(28,151,512) 17,149,458 530,579 (10,471,475)
93,326,070) (2,623,733) 64,463,792 (31,486,011)
42,405,142 61,701,056 104,106,198
(50,920,928) (2,623,733) 126,164,848 72,620,187
12
POCI
( ) ( ) ( )
2,832,607 5,370,666 213,481,054 10,294,690 231,979,107
246,769 491,634 41,544,417
(2,943,344) (1,070, 285) (10,294,690)
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ECL « ) 8,686,508 697,946 132,290,034 141,674,488
2,180,200 8,314,402 10,494,602
(8,795,516) (1,458,865) (26,157,130) (36,411,511)
FVTPL
(7.,267,078) (7,267,078)
2021 12 31
2,207,314 4,031,096 375,775,615 382,014,025
12
POCI
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2020 2,825,668 10,521 101,730,809 8,696,382 113,263,380
348,301 1,642 15,685,899 1,102,124 17,137,966
(3.183,246) 1,510,805 1,220,761 451,680
25,666 - 20,209 45,875
(354,736) (3,260) (27,279) (385,275)
ECL « ) 1,872,752 3,845,994 101,052,625 106,771,371
1,695,360 43,407 29,318 45,469 1,813,554
(393,620) (38,444) (848,149) (965) (1,281,174)
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FVTPL (209,494) (209,494)
(3,451) (5,173,644) (5,177,095)
2020 12 31
2,832,697 5,370,666 213,481,055 10,294,690 231,979,107
2021 12 ECL
2,943,344 2020 1,510,805 ECL 1,070,285 2020
1,672,441

borrowing base

30
1,020,895,698 2020 980,386,664

PD LGD
S P SME
SME

SME
S P SME

PD S&P SME

EBITDA
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LGD
90
CCC-  AAA LGD B
+ LGD 20
LGD
LGD ECL
2021 2020
( ) ( )
17(a)(v) 17(c) 3,282,364 1,013,357
* 65,480 -
14,437 31,099
- 456,884
3,362,281 1,501,340
ECL
2021 2020
( ) ( )
1,316,350 1,878,413
82,400 139,368
34,165 38,707
5,937 -
1,233 -
1,910 -
- 1,863
- 812

1,441,995 2,059,163
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12 31
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2021
2020 12 31
2021
2021 2020
( ) ( )
46,818,690 50,906,285
27,018,870 30,639,457
3,758,440 3,758,440
3,405,557 2,756,704
- 3,137,100
- 3,753,611
12,633,166 9,154,601
93,634,723 104,106,198
2021
25,572,661 2020
2021 2020
( ) ( )
104,106,198 131,316,648
7,285,585 67,216,383
(25,222,968) (99,954, 633)
9,798,477 15,308,587
2,332,569) 9,780,787)
93,634,723 104,106,198

2021
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( ) ( )
2,678,763 243,110
429,086 528,733
452,428 790,510
227,597
3,560,277 1,789,950
2
2021 2020
( ) ( )
112,519,217 124,271,204
569,135 1,206,520
8,197 247,423
6,900 23,700
77,906
12,067
113,181,355 125,760,914
30 2020 30
2021 2020
( ) ( )
1,529,665 205,745

35 2020 35
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2021 2020
( ) ( )
(29,325,427) 30,979,841
2,172,690 7,154,918
(27,152,737) 38,134,759
18.11
2021 2020
( ) ( )
97,042 126,547
520,918 89,801
266,806
428,766
617,960 911,920
B3 B4 B3
B1 B2
B4
0.7
508,592
2021 2020
( ) ( )
5,735,122 7,224,721
4,049,455 4,560,706
1,245,056 3,523,160

(1,231,156)
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**2021
2020 0
12.
**k*k*k
*%
*
* k%
*  MUFG
MUFG
12
2022 1
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9,798,477 15,308,587
600,000 2020 1,000,000
1,231,156
2021 2020
( ) ( )
1,241,009 733,432
319,830
282,961 172,482
264,432 433,171
256,836 261,313
151,546 111,959
131,930 71,441
99,324 55,825
60,726 72,145
47,500 47,500
45,000 53,400
22,920 22,920
7,200 7,200
6,245 2,700
3,600
2,937,459 2,049,088
35,000
2022 15
256,836 2020 261,313

2020 38,707

Bl B2

B4
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*k*%k
e 2021 2019 12 31
2020 3 30
2020 3 31 1
2020 3 31
30 1
13.
2020
14.
20,000,000 20,000,100
Bl
25,000 B3 25,000
B1
B3 25,000
2020 30
Bl B2 B4
B4
B3 12

B3

0.7

2021 6

100

100,000

100,000

20,000

B4

30

30
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15,515,995

2021 6

2021

Bl B2 B3 B4

B2

100,000

25,000
10,000

Bl B2
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BL B3 B4 B2
2021 12 31
2021 2020
( ) ( )
* 35,515,997 107,149,325
(28,617,011) (107,149,325)
6,898,986
2021 2019 12 31 15,515,997
2020 31 2020 31
2020 30
2021
20,000,000 2021
9 30 2021 12 31 20,000,000
6,898,986 2,309,737
KYC
12 31
2021
B1 2,422,110 - (106,433) 2,315,677
B2 538,487 . (13,122) 525,365
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B3 9,680 - (236) 9,444
B4 28,858, 314 - (703,220) 28,155,094
31,828,591 - (823,011) 31,005,580
2020
B1 2,168,057 571,904 (317,851) 2,422,110
B2 560,013 - (21,526) 538,487
B3 9,671 9 - 9,680
B4 13,555,348 15,302, 966 - 28,858,314
16,293,089 15,874,879 (339,377) 31,828,501
2021 2020
) ( ) ( )
B1 100 279.77 317.36
B2 100 102.91 116.74
B3 100 107.10 125.22
B4 1 0.85 0.97
2021 2020
( ) ( )
(98,364,692) (2,037,991)
157,366,365 132,614,182
() 29,325,427 (30,979, 841)
( ) (2.172,690) (7,154,918)
9,798,477 15,308,587
(113,181,355) (125,760,914)
* (428,766)
(1,529, 665) (205, 745)

(18,758,133) (18,645,406)
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2020

0

0

16,438,634
1,316,350

12

2020

726,654,773

B4 2.7
2020
2020

LIBOR

20

0

2020
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2021
BFML B1 49,072 13,723,666
2020
BFML B1 50,298 15,977,305
( )
2021 2020
( ) ( )
B3 3,327 28,981
B4 (12,169) (13,125)
2021 2020
( ) ( )
438,019 -
277,980 2,349,635
(568.,886) (1,911,616)

147,113 438,019
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2021 12 31
2021 1 1

(
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 1 1
ECL ()
2021 12 31
*

2020 12 31

)
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A B c D E F
19,722,218 54,667,180 16,544,056 101,769,481 11,318,631 90,026 204,11
7,970,456 834,085 79,367 8,88
101,769,481 3,187,053  (101,769,481) 3,18
(11,625,117) (55,283)  (1,025,886) (12,152,716) (24,85
9,787,597 118,180 49,794 9,95
(29,628,366) 302,939 (29,32
90,025,813 62,700,533 19,008,162 219,186 163,95

A* B c* D E F
(1,375,702) (19,741) (823) (1,38
(2,302,031) (8,336) (2,31

15,967

(34,133) (5,230) €
(14,413,303) 19,741 (8.632) (14,4
(18,109,202) (23,021) (18,1
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2020 12 31
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2020 1 1
ECL ()
2020 12 31
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A B c D E F
8,425,580 47,694,809 16,540,838 36,847,495 12,940,415 40,492 122,48
6,975,999 1,475,369 18,109 8,46
(751,628) (279,764) (1,03
(11,062,758) (27,221) (2,368,958) (2,817,389) (16,27
15,388,249 23,593 3,218 27,440,313 31,425 42,88
7,722,775 39,850,631 47,57
19,722,218 54,667,180 16,544,056 101,769,481 11,318,631 90,026 204,11
A* B c* D E F
(141,537) (24,543) (6,150) (28,801) (60) el
(20,702) (3,284) 27 C
623
81 6,271
(70) 47
(1,213,474) 24,543 6,150 5,450 637) (1,17
(1,375,702) (19,741) (823) (1,3
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2021 2020

5,625
5,625
5,625
550,838

2,000

(227,597)
3,135,251 5,625
3,135,251 347,741

2021 2020

2,497,604

(5,494,671)
(2,997,067)

1,966,682

(12,763,338)
(10,796, 656)
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(12,795,000)
(12,795,000)

(3,568, 636)
(3,568, 636)

2021 2020
( ) ( )
4,848,194 2,843,821
1,341,533 2020 :194,493
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18.2

2020 12 31
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2021 2020
( ) ( )
47,500 47,500
174,922
222,422 47,500
2021 12 31
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18.3

2021 12 31

12
3,118,782 152,376 3,775,455 246,087,487 385,747,573 638,881,673 448,258,946 190,622,727 -
- FVTPL - 14,751,286 - - 109,033,975 123,785,261 - - 123,785,261
- - 3,347,845 - - 3,347,845 - - 3,347,845
- - 4,848,194 - - 4,848,194 4,848,194 - -
- 7,000,000 - - 8,257,647 15,257,647 - 15,257,647 -
46,337,408 - - - - 46,337,408 - 28,216,329 18,121,079
49,456,190 21,903,662 11,971,494 246,087,487 503,039,195 832,458,028 453,107,140 234,096,703 145,254,185
12
(1,441,995) - - - - (1,441,995) - - (1,441,995)
(986,911) - - (30,917,969) (61,729,842) 93,634,724) (44,492,168) (49,142,556) -
(3,560,277) - - - - (3,560,277) - - (3,560,277)
(1,239,330) (1,023,853) (4,635,803) - - (6,898,986) - - (6,898,986)
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(7,228,513) (1,023,853) (4,635,803) (30,917,969) (61,729,842) (105,535,982) (44,492,168) (49,142,556) (11,901,258)
42,227,677 20,879,809 7,335,691 215,169,518 441,309,353 726,922,046 408,614,972 184,954,147 133,352,927
2020 12 31
12
109,801,168 15,747,078 30,881,411 249,839,520 342,138,380 748,407,557 527,787,476 220,620,081 -
- FVTPL 14,277,122 - 5,728,586 113,641,392 19,731,109 153,378,209 - - 153,378,209
- 1,470,241 - - - 1,470,241 - - 1,470,241
2,843,821 - - - - 2,843,821 2,843,821 - -
4,615,950 - - - - 4,615,950 - 4,615,950 -
58,025,606 - - - - 58,025,606 - 13,909,303 44,116,303
189,563,667 17,217,319 36,609,997 363,480,912 361,869,489 968,741,384 530,631,297 239,145,334 198,964,753
12
(2,059,163) - - - - (2,059,163) - - (2,059,163)
(2,825,162) (5,444,650) (19,887,601) (31,719,331) (44,229,454) 104,106,198) (62,700, 466) (41,405,732) -
(1,789,950) - - - - (1,789,950) - - (1,789,950)
(6,674,275) (5,444,650) (19,887,601) (31,719,331) (44,229,454) (107,955,311) (62,700, 466) (41,405,732) (3,849,113)
182,889,392 11,772,669 16,722,396 331,761,581 317,640,035 860,786,073 467,930,831 197,739,602 195,115,640
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0.25

2021 12 31 2020 0.25
1,849,541 2020 494,349 2020 0.25 1,849,541
2020 494,349
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2021 2020
( ) ( )
638,881,673 748,407,557
123,785,261 153,378,209
3,347,845 1,470,241
4,848,194 2,843,821
15,257,647 4,615,950
46,337,408 58,025,606
832,458,028 968,741,384
PD EAD
IFRS ECL
PD S&P
S&P SME PD LGD

S&P
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LGD
LGD
PD LGD
S&P SME SME SME
A- PD B B- PD
S&P PD
12
S&P AAA cCC- 19
S&P
2021 2020

AAA 0.0040% 0.0046%
AA+ 0.0066% 0.0076%
AA 0.0124% 0.0137%
AA- 0.0256% 0.0286%
A+ 0.0403% 0.0449%
A 0.0581% 0.0696%
A- 0.0817% 0.0978%
BBB+ 0.1221% 0.1439%
BBB 0.1656% 0.1973%
BBB- 0.2650% 0.3094%
BB+ 0.3757% 0.4427%
BB 0.6261% 0.7419%
BB- 1.1280% 1.2487%
B+ 2.2410% 2.4417%
B 3.6907% 4.5755%
B- 7.6102% 8.6656%
CCC+ 14 _4865% 15.9703%

55/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

CCC 27.5795% 29.4341%
CCC- 52.5128% 54.2517%
100% 100%

2021 12 31

864,320,348 (62,667,376) 801,652,972  (375,775,615) 425,877,357 494,321,228

109,033,975 - 109,033,975 - 109,033,975 109,033,975

11,886,567 2020 11,869,455 BFML BFML

2020 12 31
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766,052,267 (61,701,056) 704,351,211

141,222,809 - 141,222,809
11,869,455 BFML
P-1
P-1  P-3
P-1  P-3
2020
105
2021 2020 12 31

P -1
P -3
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(223,775,745) 480,575,466 1,859,702,288

BFML

- 141,222,809 141,222,809
2021
10,000
2021 2020
( ) ( )
78,412 79,212
41,190,972 13,842,463
5,068,024 44,103,931

46,337,408 58,025,606
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2021 2020

( ) ( )
3,347,845 1,470,241

-12

2021 2020

( ) ( )
4,848,194 2,843,821

-12
1,341,533

2021 2020

( ) ( )
15,257,647 4,615,950

-12
2021 12 31
POCI
( )

124,886 - - - 124,886  BBB-
46,922,870 - 138,620,536 - 185,543,406  B- BB+
16,547,506 76,764,027 772,066,411 - 865,377,944  CCC+
63,595,262 76,764,027 910,686,947 - 1,051,046,236

2020 12 31
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POCI
- - - - - BBB-
B_
73,438,025 - 95,182,962 - 168,620,987 BB+
14,192,881 96,453,749 741,703,831 8,687,227 861,037,688 ccc+
87,630,906 96,453,749 836,886,793 8,687,227 1,029,658,675
Afr
5,068,024 2020 44,103,931
18.9
12 31
2021 2020
) )
1 11 12
2 6 8
3 6 7
4 6 6
5 5 6
6 5 5
61 56
100 100
61 2020 56 81 2020 96

61 2020 56
2020
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18.5
Bl B2 B3 B4
Bl 2021 13
2021 13 B2
B1 B3 B4

2020 31

18.6
90 B2
B2 3

30 30

30
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2021 12 31
12
3,118,782 152,376 3,775,455 246,087,487 385,747,573 638,881,673
- 14,751,286 - - 109,033,975 123,785,261
- - 3,347,845 - - 3,347,845
- - 4,848,194 - - 4,848,194
- 7,000,000 - - 8,257,647 15,257,647
46,337,408 - - - - 46,337,408
49,456,190 21,903,662 11,971,494 246,087,487 503,039,195 832,458,028
12
(1,441,995) - - - - (1,441,995)
(986,911) - - (30,917,969) (61,729,842) 93,634,723)
(3,560,277) - - - - (3,560,277)
(1,239,330) (1,023,853) (4,635,803) - - (6,898,986)
) (17,273,487) (4,682,155) (38,044,358) - (666,936,483) (726,936,483)
(24,502,000) (5,706,008) (42,680,161) (30,917,969) (728,666,325) (832,472,464)
24,954,190 16,197,654 (30,708,667) 215,169,518 (225,627,132) (14,436)
2025
2025
60,000,000
2020 12 31
12
109,801,168 15,747,078 30,881,411 249,839,520 342,138,380 748,407,557
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14,277,122 - 5,728,586 113,641,392 19,731,109 153,378,209
- - 1,470,241 - - 1,470,241
- - 2,843,821 - - 2,843,821
4,615,950 - - - - 4,615,950
58,025,606 - - - - 58,025,606
186,719,846 15,747,078 40,924,059 363,480,912 361,869,489 968,741,384
12
(2,059,163) - - - - (2,059,163)
(2.825,162) (5,444,650) (19,887,601) (31,719,331) (44,229, 454) 104,106,198)
(1,789,950) - - - - (1,789,950)
- - - - (860,817,172) (860,817,172)
(6,674,275) (5,444,650) (19,887,601) (31,719,331) (905,046, 626) (968,772,483)
180,045,571 10,302,428 21,036,458 331,761,581 (543,177,137) 31,099
18.7
2021 12 31
2021 2021 2021
( ) ( ) ( )
1,631 - 1,631
1,096,240 (1,045,288) 50,952
4,084 (1,407) 2,677
2020 12 31
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2020 2020 2020
( ) ( ) ( )
671 (1,863) (1,192)
1,200,234 (1,315,525) (115,291)
4,203 - 4,203
12 31 10 2020 10
10
2021 2020
( ) ( )
+/- 163 +/- (119)
+/- 5,095 +/- (11,529)
+/- 268 +/- 420
) )
2021 2020
26,977,687 2.38% 22,261,109 1.96%
4,916,821 0.43% 20,257,906 1.79%
3,772,511 0.33% 3,327,669 0.29%
26,157,111 2% 35,510,572 3.13%
6,511,784 0.57% 6,440,744 0.57%
14,251,005 1.24% 12,621,184 1.11%
15,565,854 1.36% 13,227,943 1.17%
108,213,519 9.45% 125,097,425 11.03%

63/143



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00DDOO00oOO(Ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

833,539 0.07% 776,468 0.07%
4,939,420 0.43% 4,579,102 0.40%
167,352,381 14.62% 152,968,820 13.49%
- 0.00% 14 0.00%
20,717,084 1.81% 22,432,522 1.98%
836,012 0.07% 1,417,580 0.13%
9,619,190 0.84% 8,757,154 0.77%
- 0.00% 4,607,377 0.41%
20,606,289 1.80% 18,429,887 1.63%
- 0.00% 47,291,623 4.17%
26,772,779 2.34% 25,168,840 2.22%
4,065,871 0.36% 3,099,462 0.27%
396,768,934 34.66% 411,247,081 36.27%
935,323 0.08% 1,121,458 0.10%
36,787,722 3.21% 34,846,887 3.07%
10,951,244 0.96% 10,765,109 0.95%
14,751,286 1.29% 12,155,401 1.07%
10,400,690 0.91% 7,482,157 0.66%
51,211,054 4.47% - -
66,461,761 5.81% 58,629,157 5.17%
25,726,992 2.25% 21,633,762 1.91%
43,667,185 3.81% 40,462,349 3.57%
13,265,541 1.16% 3,218 0.00%
11,644,370 1.02% 7,144,894 0.63%
1,144,680,959 100% 1,133,764,874 100%
18.9
2021 2020
50
84.06 64.50
20
30 34.66 36.25
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2.5
2.50 2.50
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2.5
18.10
12 31
2021 2020
) )

17 17
11 13
16 14
FMCG 9 10

8

8

7
6 5
18 18
100 100

2021 18 2020 18
23 2020 20
18 2020 18
2020
18.11
2021 12 31
2021 2020
( ) ( )

153,378,209 61,311,948
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()

(29,325,427) 30,979,841
2,172,690 7,154,918
1,417,014 -
- 29,835,834
- (751,628)
52,008,545 35,910,054
(55, 865,770) (11,062,758)
123,785,261 153,378,209

123,785,261

153,378,209
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2021

123,785,261 - - 123,785,261
2020

153,378,209 - - 153,378,209
19.
2020 30

18
20.
2021 2020 12 31

21.
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2021
2021 27
2021 30
20,000,000
2021 13
2019 12 31
22.
2021
COVID-19
WHO 47 38
23.
MUFG 2022 15

2022 15

2021 12 31
2022 31 60,000,000
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
{Expressed in United States dollars)

ASSETS

Loans receivable at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through profit or boss
Cash and cash equivalents

Amount due from broker

Loan receivable from related party

Other receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities

Loans payable
Redemption payable
Cther payables
Accrued expenses

Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Note

'ﬁ-hl.nt.n

o
an

™

T

Page 7
2021 2020
uso usp
638,881,673 748,407,557
123,785,261 153,378,209
46,337,408 58,025,606
15,257,647 4,615,950
4,848,194 2,843,821
3,362,281 1,501,340
832,472,464 968,772,483
93,634,723 104,106,198
6,898,986 -
3,560,277 1,789,950
1,441,995 2,059,163
105,535,981 107,955,311
726,936,483 860,817,172

Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Director
Mitchell Alan Barrett

Director
Michael Pearson

The notes on pages 11 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Note 2021 2020
usD uso
Investment income
Interest income 9(a) 113,181,355 125,760,914
Realised fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 9e) 2,172,690 7,154,918
Unrealised fair value (loss)/gain on financials asset at fair value
through profit or loss 9c) (29,325.427) 30,979,841
Profit margin on loans receivable at fair value through profit or
loss 9(b) 1,529,665 205,745
Cther income 10 617,960 911,920
Net investment income 88,176,243 165,013,338
Expenses
Increase in expected credit losses 5 157,366,365 132,614,182
Management fees 17{(a} 16,438,634 17,079,472
Interest expense 11 9,798,477 15,308,587
Cther operating expenses 12 2,937,459 2,049,088
Total operating expenses 186,540,935 167,051,329
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares from operations (98,364,692) (2,037,991}

The notes on pages 11 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
the beginning of the year

Proceeds from redeemable participating
shares issued

Payment on redeemable participating
shares redeemed

Decrease in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares
from operations

Met assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at the
end of the year

2021
usoD

860,817,172

(35,515,997)

(98,364,692)

726,936,483

— ] ——

The notes on pages 11 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash utilised in operations 15
Decrease in loans receivable — amortised cost
Decreasef(increase) in financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

{Increase)/decreasa in other receivables

Increase in loan receivable from related party
(Decrease)/increass in accrued expenses

Proceeds received from finance obtained B(a)

Increase in other payables
Repayments of finance obtained B(a)

Cash used in operating activities

Interest received

Profit mangin received

Interest paid on loans payable &a)

Net cash flow provided by/ (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued

Payment of redeemable participating shares redeemed 11
Repayment of capital contributions received in advance

Net cash (used in)/ provided by financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

EDINETOOOO
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2021 2020

uso uso
(18,758,133)  (18,645,4086)
42,398,043 24,110,110
2,550,477  (53,841,182)
(1,860,942) (1,221,111)
(2,004,373) (2.843,821)
(617,168) (4,118,585)
7,285,585 67,216,383
{10,641,697) (4,615,950)
1,770,327 -
(25,222,968) (106,115,595)
(5,100,849 (100,075,157)
22,942,832 19,625,190
1,419,399 115,425
(2,332,569) {9,780,787)
16,928,813  (90,115,329)
- 204,021,057
(28,617,011) (106,720,615)
- (31,423,775)
(28,617,011) 65,876,667
(11,688,198)  (24,238,662)
58,025,606 82,264,268
46,337,408 58,025,606

The notes on pages 11 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
1. ORGANISATION AND PURPOSE

Barak Fund SPC Limited (the "Company™) is an open-ended investment company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company on 24 September 2008 and registered as a Segregated Portfolio
company under the provisions of the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands. As a Segregated Portfolio
company under Cayman Islands law, the Company can operate Segregated Portfolios with the benefit of
statutory segregation of assets and liabilities between each Segregated Portfolio. As of 31 December 2021,
the Company has seven active Segregated Portfolios {2020; 7) of which Barak Structured Trade Finance
Segregated Portfolio (the” Fund™) is one of the Segregated Portfolios.

Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio (the "Fund" or "Segregated Portfolio”) is market
neutral providing asset backed debt in trade finance transactions. The Fund does not take proprietary
positions. Financed commodities generally incorporate all risk asset insurance and collateral monitoring.
The Fund had a technical listing on the Irish Stock Exchange (" ISE") where units are not traded. The
Company was delisted from the ISE on 13 September 2021 further to the exit strategy of the Fund.

The Investment Manager of the Fund is Barak Fund Management Limited ("BFML or the Investment
Manager") and the Administrator is MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) 2 Limited (terminated on 15 March
2022). The Fund has appointed Vistra Alternative Investments (Mauritius) Limited as the” New
Administrator” on 15th March 2022,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, are set out below.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("LFRS"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Fund’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed below.

As result of the COVID-19 impact management has noted a significant portion of its borrowers' showing
signs of cashflow and liquidity problems due to supply chain disruption and economic downturn, which
resulted in borrowers’ defaulting on their repayment agreements. These matters indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty in relation to going concern, which may cast significant doubt about the Fund's ability
to continue as a going concern. The directors of the Fund suspended the voluntary redemption rights of
shareholders in the Fund on 30 March 2020 to protect the Portfolio's value to ensure that all shareholders
in it were treated equally. From the date of the suspension to the date of signing of the financial statements,
the directors have ensured that the Fund’s Investment Manager has continued to manage the investment
portfolio of the Fund with a view to maintaining investor value and protecting the asset base of the Portfolio.

The directors, on advice from the Investment Manager, do not currently believe that the circumstances
that gave rise to the suspension are likely to cease to exist in the short to medium term (being at least 18
months from date of signing of the financial statements) and therefore the suspension will very likely remain
in place for at least that period, maybe longer.

To maximise shareholder value, the Investment Manager intends to realise the loans receivable in a
controlled manner rather than on a “fire-sale” basis. This process will, over time, convert the assets to
cash.

The Portfolio will then, via a process of compulsory redemptions, return distributable cash to investors on
a pro-rata basis as part of the Portfolio’s exit strategy.

Management is dedicated to sustaining a transparent outlook and providing a solid foundation during the
current phase of the Fund's life cycle.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares unless otherwise stated.

&l amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest United States dallar.
Critical accounting estimates and judgemeants

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and significant judgement relating to going concern, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Judgements
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recoanised prospectively,

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
an the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as below:

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, determining the methodology for incorporating forward-looking information into
the measurement of expected cradit losses (" ECL") and selection and approval of models used to measure
ECL.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment is as below:

Expected credit losses of financial instruments: determination of inputs into the ECL measurement model,
including key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows and incorporation of farward-looking
information.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: use of uncbservable inputs, being the
probability of recoverability of the loan.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies sat out below have been applied consistently to all periods presanted in the financial
statermnents.

Investment income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
Amortised Cost using the Effective Interest Rate Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected
life of the financial instrument, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses.

75/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page 13

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment income [continued)

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial
statements.

For purchased or originated credit<impaired ("POCI) financial assets - assets that are credit-impaired at
initial recognition — the Fund calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based
on the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact
of expected credit losses in estimated future cash flows. The calculation includes all facility fees and
drawdown fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Facility fees and drawdown fees range
from 0.5% to 1.5% of the disbursed amount.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets, except for:

(a) POCI financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost of the financial asset;

{b) Financial assets that are not "POCI" but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or “stage 37, for
which interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost {i.e.net
of the expected credit losses provision).

Profft margin

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and presented net within other gaing/(losses) in the
period in which it arises.

Management and Performance fees

The Investment Manager receives a fixed fee of 2.0% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund plus
a performance fee of 20% of the annual increase in the Net Asset Value of the Fund subject to a hurdle
rate equal to LIBOR. If the annual increase in the Net Asset Value is less than LIBOR, no performance fee
is payable. Once the hurdle rate is exceeded, the performance fee is payable on the entire performance.
The fixed fee is calculated and charged monthly in arrears and the performance fee is calculated and
charged quarterly in arrears. The performance fee is calculated based on the Net Asset Value as determined
by the administrator in accordance with the Articles of Association and not based on the audited net asset
value as determined by the auditor. If, when the audit is completed the audited net asset value is lower
than the year-end NAY as produced by the administrator, the Company has the right to draw down from
the escrow account, the amount of the overpayment of performance fees. The performance fee is
calculated in @ manner which ensures that appropriate adjustments are made to accommeodate the inflows
and outflows of capital during each fiscal year resulting from subscriptions and redemptions. Once
management and performance fees have been crystalized in the Fund, it is at the discretion of the Manager
to pay it over.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual’s basis and in accordance
with the relevant agreements.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
{CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency transiation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the United States dollar ("US dollar”
or” USD™) as, in the opinion of Management, the US dollar best represents the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operates. The Fund has also adopted the US dollar as its presentation
currency. The US dollar has been determined as the functional currency as this is the predominant currency
of the investor base.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies, which occurred during the year, are translated into US dollars at the rate
prevailing on the transaction date. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into US dollars
at the rate prevailing at the vear-end date. Profits and losses on foreign currency transiations are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

Financial instruments
Finarncial assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Classification and initial measurement

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories, as set out in IFRS 9:

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or
through profit or loss), and;
=+ those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through (FVOCI), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI)’ on the principal amount cutstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The Fund’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. At initial recognition, the Fund measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
{FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash
fiows and sell, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (the "SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Fund considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e., interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels {continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement {(continued)

= Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the financial
assets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in statement of comprehensive income and presenbed in gains/(losses)
in the statement of comprehensive income on derecognition. Expected credit losses are presented as a
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income. The Fund's financial assets at amortised cost
include loans receivable, loan receivable from related party, other receivables, amount due from broker
and cash and cash equivalents {at cash value) which are subsequently measured as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and are presented net of expected credit losses.

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in statement of comprehensive income. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in "Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash eguivalents

For presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loan recefvable from related panty

Loan receivable from related party is recognised at amortised costs using the effective interest rate method
less any expected credit losses.

Amount due from broker

Amount due from broker represents cash available in a financial institution and is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. The Company is using a related party Special
Purpese Vehicle to liquidate the collateral on its behalf. The price risk has been mitigated via a hedging
agreement entered by the Company on behalf of the borrower and the financial institution, Macquarie
bank. The Company does not take any derivative risk in the hedge transaction and neither incur any loss
ar gain.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any directors {(whether executive
or ctherwise). The non-executive directors of the Fund are categorised as key management personnel.
Refer to Noke 13 for further detail.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
{CONTINUED)

3, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets {continued)

{c) Expected credit losses

The Fund measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for cash and cash
equivalents, other receivables, amount due from broker and loan receivable from related party measured
at amortised cost on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition. Loan
receivable from related party has been restructured and the Fund is receiving repayments on a monthly
basis.

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The expected credit losses methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk,

In the Fund, there are four types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit losses model:

Loans receivable at amortised cost
Loans receivable from related party
Amount due from broker

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). Credit impaired financial assets
are those for which one or more events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows
have already occurred.

Recoverabifity assessment for stage 3 lpans

Refer to note S for explanation on assessment of recoverability for stage 3 loans.

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Fund in addressing the requirements of IFRS 9 are:
Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The following factors are considered when determining SICR:

« Significant adverse changes in regulatory, business, financial and/ or economic conditions in which
the borrower operates

Actual or expected restructuring

Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower

Significant change in collateral value which is expected to increase risk of default

Early signs of cashflow/ liquidity problems such as unexplained delay in servicing of trade creditors/
loans

& & & @

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information and is performed, where a Proactive Risk
Management (PRM) list is used to monitor credit risk, at the counterparty level and on a periodic basis. The
criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the
independent credit risk team.

The Fund provides alternative credit solutions to the counterparties in the porifolio because access to
traditional credit is generally not available to these counterparties. Therefore, the borrowers require
alternative solutions and may require restructuring more frequently than the segment of the borrowing
population that is serviced through traditional banking lines.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets feontinued)

() Expected credit losses (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assefs

The Fund defines a financial instrument as in default:

1. when the borrower is unlikely to meet the pay criteria, which indicates that the borrower is in
significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:
« The borrower is in long-term forbearance
+ The borrower is insolvent
+ The borrower is in breach of financial covenant(s) and efforts to rectify the breach have not
been successful
+« It is becoming probable that the bormower will enter bankruptcy
« The borrower is in default to repay the facility

2. When the Investment Manager exercises its step-in rights of the borrower's entity that was pledged
to the Fund to liquidate the underlying commodity or to restructure the asset for sell down to other
institution to recoup the amount borrowed from the Fund.

The criteria above has been applied to all financial instruments held by the Fund and are consistent with
the definition of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has been
applied consistently to model the Probability of default (PD), Exposure at default (EAD) and Loss Given
Default (LGD) throughout the Fund's expected loss calculations,

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund expects to

receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whather a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is credit-impaired, Expected
credit losses are the discounted product of the probability default (PD), exposure at default (* EAD™) and
loss given default (" LGD"), defined as follows:

« The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired assets” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD),
or over the remaining lifetime {Lifetime PD) of the cbligation.

« EAD is based on the current exposure. This is because the Fund usually provides uncommitted
facilities and loans for specific purposes that can be monitored. If a borrower requests another
disbursement on a facility, this provides a credit intervention point to ensure that the conditions of
the disbursement have been met and the required security has been provided.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLLO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

{c) Expected credit losses (continued)

¢ The Fund does not provide overdraft type revolving facilities, which does not require an intervention
point by the Fund and hence does not include remaining undrawn facilities in the calculation of
EAD. Despite the above, there are a small number of facilities that have been provided to clients
on a committed basis, In this case, if the facilities are not fully drawn at year end, the Fund uses
the facility limit, and not the EAD, in the calculation of ECL.

+ LGD represents the Fund's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies
by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit
support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD).

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD at each review date and for each individual
exposure. These three components are multiplied to determine an ECL.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying the S&P maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical cbserved data from S&P and is assumed to
be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. The S&P model is supported by
historical analysis,

For the 12-month and lifetime EAD in place recorded for the Fund uses the current exposure since it
provides uncommitted facilities and has conditions to subsequent drawdowns (intervention points) that
allows the Fund to not disburse if conditions have not been met or the credit quality of the borrower or
transaction has deteriorated.

Forward-looking economic information is implicitly included in PD and LGD by ensuring that the rating (PD)
and loss rates (LGD) reflect the general outlook for the specific loan, The assumptions underlying the ECL
calculation — such as how collateral values change etc. — are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.
There have been no significant changes in the estimation techniques and significant assumptions made
during the reporting period.

LGD override
LGD override is typically used for working capital facilities that are short-term in nature and for term loans
where security is not supportive of lower LGD. These facilities are typically supported by underlying

collateral that can be realised much quicker (inventory and/or trade receivables). Accordingly, management
has considered LGD of 20% - 50% depending on the kind of exposure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
{(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assels (continued)

{c) Expected credit losses {continued)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL assessments

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The
forward-looking information, its related economic variables and associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD
vary by financial instrument. Expert judgment has been applied in this process. The Fund’s macro-economic
outlook incorporated in the counterparties credit rating and include specific forward-looking economic
considerations for the individual counterparty. The credit rating thus reflects the adjusted counterparty risk
for the Fund’s expectation of future economic and business conditions. Further adjustments based on point-
in-time market date, are made to the LGDs assigned to each counterparty to produce PDs and ECL
representative of existing market conditions.

Sensitivity analysis of forward-looking impact on expected credit losses.

Management assessed and considered the sensitivity of the expected credit losses against the forward-
looking economic conditions at a counterparty level. The S&P credit rating incorporates forward-looking
information. The weighting is reflected in both the determination of significant increase in credit risk, as
well as the measurement of the resulting expected credit losses for the individual counterparty. Therefore,
the impact of forward-looking economic conditions is embedded into the total expected credit losses for
each counterparty and cannot be stressed or separated out of the overall expected credit losses,

The Fund incorporates forward-locking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL. The Fund
formulates three economic scenarios: a base case, which is the central scenario, one upside and one
downside scenario. Bxternal information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities, supranational organisations and selected private-sector
and academic forecasts,

2021

Macro-economic factor Base case Upside Downside
% % %

GDP growth 17.45 21.82 13.08

Energy index {9.58) 0.87 (20.03)

MNon-energy index (13.32) (7.49) (19.15)

2020

Macro-economic factor Base case Upside Downside
% % %

GOP growth 14.76 22.25 2.94

Energy index 0.63 2.65 {2.16)

MNon-gnergy index 8 13.45 5.02
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

{d) Modification of financial assets

The Fund sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers.
When this happens, the Fund assesses whether the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms. The Fund does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

« If the bormower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual
cashflows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;

+  Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based retumn that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan;

= Significant change in the interest rate;

« Change in the currency the loan is denominated in;

= Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Fund derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
the ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for expected credit losses
calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. However, the Fund also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to
be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by
the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are
also recognised in statement of comprehensive income as a gain or loss on derecognition. If the terms are
not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition, and the Fund
recalculates the gross carrying amount based cn the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises
a modification gain or loss in statement of comprehensive income. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The impact of
modifications of financial assets on the expected cradit loss calculation is discussed in note 5.

The ECL is calculated before terms are modified.

Distressed restructures

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment
forgiveness. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgement
of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Restructuring is most applied to term lgans.

MNon distressed restructures

In instances where the Fund reschedules a credit agreement not in distress, the contractual cash flows are
negatiated with the client. Where the net present value is different under the new agreement a modification
gain or loss is recognised. This koss is included within expected credit losses,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Mon distressed restructures (continued)

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with
the risk under the criginal terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does
not result in derecognition of the original asset. The Fund monitors the subsequent performance of maodified
assets. The Fund may determine that the credit risk has significantly improved after restructuring, so that
the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL) to Stage 1 (12-month ECL).

{e) Curing

Continuous assessment is required to determine whether the conditions that led to a loan receivable being
credit impaired (i.e., stage 3) still exist. In the case of financial assets with quarterly or longer dated
repayment terms, the classification of a financial asset out of stage 2 may be made after an evaluation by
the Credit Committee, such evaluation will consider qualitative factors in addition to compliance with
payment terms and conditions of the agreement. Qualitative factors include compliance with covenants
and compliance with existing financial assets terms and conditions.

Where it has been determined that a loan receivable no longer meets the criteria for SICR, the financial
asset will ba moved from stage 2 back to stage 1 prospectively, This has not occurred in year 31 December
2021 nor 2020,

(f) Write-off policy

The Fund provides for financial assets, in whole, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (i) where the Fund's recovery method
is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering in full,

Only when the Fund has exhausted all practical and legal efforts to recover a loan and the Fund's Proactive
Risk Management (PRM) Committee have advised that there is no expectation of any further recovery,
does the Fund write off an asset in full.

The Fund still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owing in full, but which have been partially provided
for, due to no reasonable expectation of full recovery. The net impact after credit mitigation was USD Nil
(2020: USD Nil).

The Fund may fully provide for financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The outstanding
contractual amounts of such assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2021 was USD
7,331,447 (2020: USD 12,439,972). Attempts have been made via enforcement / court judaement and
enforcement of assets. However, given that the companies have either been liquidated or legal costs
outweigh economic benefit from recovery, Management have provided for the full amount and have written
these off in full.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (confinued)
{g) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Fund of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of financial position) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (&) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Fund continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has
retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a quarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Fund could be required to repay.

Financial Kabilities
(&) Classification and initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or at amortised cost. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Fund's financial liabilities
consist of accrued expenses, loans payables, other payables and net assets atfributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at redemption value.

(b) Subsequent meaasurement

Payables are presented as current lizbilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
perigd. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

{c) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognisad in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continwed)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Loans receivabie

Loans receivables are recognised on the implementation date specified within the relevant loan contract
and derecognised at the repayment date also specified within the same loan contract unless a further
superseded contract has adjusted the conditions related to the repayment date.

Loans receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Loans receivables are
subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any expected credit
lnsses,

Loans and other payabies

Loans and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Sale and repurchase agreemenis

Barak has entered repurchase agreements as part of its financing activities. Loans ceded under participation
agreements are disclosed as loans payable. Underlying loans ceded under repurchase agreements are not
derecognised by the Fund. The differences between the purchase and sale prices are treated as interest
and accrued using the effective interest method.

Redeemable participating shares

The Fund issues four classes of redeemable participating shares (B1, B2, B3 and B4), which are redeemable
at the holder's option. Share classes have identical rights but different terms such as lockup period which
is 3 years for B2. There 5 no lockup period on the class B3 redeemable participating shares or the Class
B4 redeemable participating shares, Out of the four share classes, only Bl shares had a technical listing on
the Irish Stock Exchange where units are not traded up until 13 September 2021, Subsequently it has been
delisted further to the exit strategy. Such shares are classified as financial liabilities as of 31 December
2021,

The redeemable participating shares can be put back to the Fund on each dealing day, after giving three
months written notice, for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Fund's net asset value. The net asset
value of the Fund will be equivalent to all the assets less all the liabilities of the Fund, which are attributable
to the particular share class, at the relevant valuation day. The valuation date is the first business day of
each month. The redeemable participating share is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
year-end date if the shareholder exercised his right to put the share back to the Fund. The redeemable
participating shares are non-voting and may be issued in different classes. Redeemable participating shares
are issued and redeemed at prices based on the Fund's net asset value per unit at the time of issue or
redemption.

Further to COVID-19 impact on the Fund, the Investment Manager has suspended redemptions and
subscriptions of the Fund effective 31 March 2020. The suspension will end on the date on which the Board
declares an end to the Suspension. This is in accordance with the terms of the private offering
memorandum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial fnstruments fcontinued)
Capital contribution received in advance

Capital contributions received in advance are subscriptions received after the first of December but before
the first of January of the following year. Subscriptions are only effective on the first day of the month.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2021

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 21 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 January 2021 and have not
been early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2021 and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements.
MNone of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

uso uso

Cash at bank 13,171,261 45,311,536
Fixed deposit 28,137,917 12,629,858
Call depaosit 5,028,230 84,212
46,337,408 58,025,606

The cash and cash equivalents are measured at cash value, This is considered to approximate the fair
value. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as stage 1.

Restricted cash

The cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and in the statement of cash flows include USD 4,084
(2020: USD 4,203) which are custodied with Stanbic bank and Is subject to regulatory restrictions and are
therefore not available for general use by the Fund.

4{a) AMOUNT DUE FROM BROKER

2021 2020
uspD ush
Closing balance as at 31 December 15,257,647 4,615,950

The above relates to the cash available in the bank account of the Fund and is used to hedge against the
market price of the Iron Ore on behalf of one of the borrowers. The fund is available on demand and is
interest free,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE

2021 2020
uso uspo
Gross loans receivable = Amortised cost 1,020,895,698 980,386,664
Expected credit losses (382,014,025) (231,979,107)
638,881,673 748,407,557
Gross loans receivable = Fair value through profit or loss 123,785,261 153,378,209
762,666,934 901,785,766
Gross loans receivable — Maximum exposure to credit risk measured
at amortised cost 1,020,895,698 980,386,664
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated through co-funding
agreements (93,634,723)  (104,106,198)
927,260,975 876,280,466
Gross loans receivable — Maximum exposure to credit risk measured
at fair value through profit or loss 123,785,261 153,378,209
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated through co-funding
agreements - -
123,785,261 153,378,209
Maximum exposure for which a credit loss can be incurred for the
Fund 1,051,046,236  1,029,658,675

s

e

The loans payable were agreements which relate to deals which have been co-financed. The risk and retumns
that the Fund bears, is effectively mirrored proportionately back to the co-financier as part of the participation
agreement. A participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered into where
all commercial and legal terms are agreed.

The co-funding agreements have been assessed as a credit mitigation/enhancement in term of measuring
the ECL on the gross loans receivable. The credit losses on these portions of the gross loans will be borne by
the co-funders as the Fund will derecognize the liability to the co-funder at the point of write-off. The loans
that were co-funded were considered for derecognition, however due to non-contractual reimbursement
received the pass-through criteria was not met and the loans were not derecognized.

88/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Fage 26
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
usD usoD usp usD uso
2021
Fund's maximum 48,843,976 76,764,027 801,652,972 - 927,260,975
EXPOSUre
to credit losses —
Amortised cost
ECL (2,207,314) (8,031,096) (375,775.615) - (382,014,025)
Fund’s maximum
Exposure
to credit losses —
F"l"TF'L 14[?5‘1_' 235 i 1“9;“33}9?5 = 123}?55;261
et exposure after
co-funder
mitigation and ECL 61,387,948 72,732,931 534,911,332 - 668,468,791
Loans receivable classified as stage 3 and POCT can be sphit as follows:
Stage 3
Investment
Manager Non- POCI
Contractual exercised step in performing  Contractual
rights loans breaches Total
2021 usD uso usoD usD uso
Stage 3 Maximum
exposure to credit
losses - Amortised
cost 621,186,012 120,130,246 60,336,714 - 801,652,972
ECL (248,435,568) (76,856,301) (50,483,746) - (375,775,615)
Stage 3 Maximum
exposure to credit
losses — FYTPL - 109,033,975 - - 109,033,975
Met exposure after
co-funder

mitigation and ECL 372,750,444 152,026,210 9,852,968 - 534,911,332
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2020

Fund's maximum
Bxposure

to credit bosses -
Amortised cost
ECL

Fund's maximum
exposure

to credit bosses —
FVTFL

Met exposure after
co-funder
mitigation and ECL

2020

Stage 3 Maimum
exposure to credit
losses - Amortised
oost

ECL

Stage 3 Maximum
exposure to cradit
losses = FYTPL

Met exposure after
co-funder
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
usD usp LsD UsD uso
75,475,506 96,453,749 695,663,984 8,687,227 876,280,466
(2,832,697) {5,370,666) (223,324,065) (451,680) {231,979,107)
12,155,400 - 141,222 809 - 153,378,208
84,798,209 91,083,083 613,562,728 8,235,547 797,679,568
Loans receivable classified as stage 3 and POCI can be split as follows:
Stage 3
Investment MNon- POCT
Contractual  Manager exercised performing Contractual
Breaches step in rights loans breaches Total
UsD usp uso uso uso
506,990,005 147,262,967 41,411,012 8,687,227 704,351,211
{164,458 687) (25,803,457) (33,021,581) (451,680) {223,775,745)
- 141,222,809 - - 141,222,809
342,491,018 262,682,279 8,389,431 8,235,547 621,798,275

mitigation and ECL

Definition of stages

+ Stage 1 includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, client performing as per
agreement and 12-month expected credit losses ("ECL") are recognised.

« Stage 2 includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recagnition (unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not have objective evidence
of expacted credit losses, For thece assets, lifetime ECL are recognised. This will also include assets that

were restructured,

« Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. These
assets can either be classified as non-performing loans, where security is taken to tackle either by court or
sell down or contractual breach due to delays in repayment and covenants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
rahili fi
Contractual breaches

For borrowers where there have been financial breaches, the Investment Manager typically works with the
client to explore different avenues to rectify the breach. This could either mean a restructuring of the debt
to:

A. Better suit the actual repayment terms and would match the actual trade cycle which could have been
differently presented at credit committee;

B. Adjust covenants given probable change in the economic environment in which the client is operating
where there are criteria that have materially change from the time of approving the loan at credit
committee,

While the list can be exhaustive, the essence of the recoverability of the loan is tailor made for each clients
in order to be able provide adequate assistance to the client so that these breaches are rectified and ensure
that the trade is not at risk and also ensure that future trades are better structured to bring adequate yield
from operation to not only service the loan and interest but also future sustainability of clients that will
enhance the relationship between the Fund and the borrower.

Major clients in this bucket are:

« Loan counterparty 1 is a prepayment facility syndicated with reputational institutions in Congo
where there have been delays in the repayment profile. It is backed by proven barrels of oil in the
specific offshore reserves. Since the oil market collapse in early 2020, there has been pickup in ol
prices. The primary source of recovery would be through the delivery and sale of oil barrels from
where the proceeds will be used to settle the exposure. The loan reached its contractual obligation
in March 2021 and the prepayment restructure is being extended via a formal amendment,
Repayments has restarted in April 2022 which has accelerated the restructuring plan. The exposure
as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 51,211,054 (2020: USD 47,291,623).
Post year end repayment from the loan counterparty amounts to USD 4,832,962,

o Loan counterparty 2 is an exposure in Kenya with shares pledge as security relates to a subsidiary
which manufactures cement. There have been delays in the repayment and the Investment
Manager has been exploring various avenues of recovery. The primary route to recovery is through
an exit to an interested purchaser. The secondary route is a combination of an exit and cash flows
of the underlying business. The last route to recovery is through the cash flows of the underlying
business. The exit strategy is through perfection of shares and sale of shares to a bidder which is
expected to take around 18 months to execute. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of
cofunder, amounts to USD 72,593,593 (2020: USD 64,593,207). There has been no repayment
from the counterparty post year end.

91/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page 29

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Contractual breaches {continued)

» Loan counterparty 3 is an exposure from a group in Kenya where significant and measurable
turnaround can be seen. The borrower unveiled signs of financial weakness during the last financial
year, but these has since reduced owing to a wider group restructure led by the Investment
Manager along with other local banks, resulting in the Fund moving from second ranking mezzanine
position to a senior lender. Hence providing much needed control rights and maintaining a ring-
fenced improved collateral package. Furthermore, to support repayments, the group revenue post
pandemic impacts has started recovering and there is also an equity divestment process at a related
party to free up equity. Also, the Investment Manager is working for an exit solution with other
major lenders which are primarily banking institutions. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net
of cofunder, amounts to USD 72,319,939 (2020: USD 81,192,894). Post year end repayment from
the loan counterparty amounts to USD 429,702,

« Loan counterparty 4 is a holding group of companies invested in the healthcare, apparel, foods
and personal products sectors in emerging market economies, The original exposure defaulted and
subsequently the deal was restructured in 2019 and primary security attached to the deal from an
underlying portfolio company in the Australian retail market. The Investment Manager believes that
recovery will come from a private sale/IPO of this business in the next 2-year period which is reliant
on a forecast growth assumption of 15.5% and 10 times exits multiple on listing. The exposure as
of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 70,644,872 (2020: USD &62,723,458),
There has bean no repayment from the counterparty post year end.

+ Loan counterparty 5 is a facility used for the funding of zinc and other metal commedities in South
Africa. The primary source of recovery is through a settlement by an Asian Pacific Company which
has proven funds available and s currently executing a due diligence on loan counterpart 5. A
secondary option is for the Investor Manager to take over all the assets of the Company by
perfecting on the collateral in the Company, thereafter, sell the assets to an interested buyer which
are in the current pipeline. A third option is to partner up with a strategic partnership and recover
the cutstanding balance exposure through cash flows from operations of the business and this
option would take between 3 to 5 years from December 2021. The exposure as of 31 December
2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 34,598,788 (2020: USD 29,405,740). There has been no
repayment from the counterparty post year end.

+ Loan counterparty & is a facility used for crude oil in Tanzania. While the majority of the exposure
has been fully settled, there is still an outstanding amount which will require further effort to recoup
for the Fund which will take roughly 1 year from two routes, including sell down of the exposure
to the lead bank or conducting the sale of the underlying assets. There are already some interested
parties which will be considered as soon as borders are opened for business in the greater East
Africa regicn. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 9,912,619
{2020: USD 9,503,183). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year end.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
R il nt f i
Contractual breaches {continued)

+ Zimbabwe exposures continue to be under great pressure and 2021 saw ongoing issues for the
borrowers stemming from the difficult monetary situation in the country combined with pressure
from COVID which has further hampered an already struggling economy. Due to the ongoing
financial issues of the two loan counterparties, relating to their parent company and its gquarantor,
the Investment Manager has initiated Business Rescue Proceedings in Zimbabwe against its
guarantor and is looking to recover the exposure via this route. This has opened interest from
various potential parties looking to buy the collateral claim and discussions around a sell down are
ongoing. This route will take approximately 2 years to recovery. The exposure as of 21 December
2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 25,525,590 (2020: USD 22,882,027). There has been no
repayment from the counterparty post year end.

« African exposures with sovereign risk attached where the offtaker is primarily the government,
While there is acknowledgement of debt via the underlying borrowers, the liquidity position has
not helped the repayment profile of our borrowers and required sovereign probability of default
was applied. These loans are also collateralized with fixed property and adjusted risk for the return
factor where key input in the property valuation are their strategic location, size and marketability
as well as prospects of these underlying properties, The Investment Manager is working closely
with different parties to recoup in the shortest period the outstanding balance from its investments
either settlement by debtor of outstanding paper under normal trading operations or enforcing
security and liquidating collateral. These two processes are currently running in parallel to ensure
the quickest route to recovery. Recovery is still expected to take between 12 to 24 months from
December 2021. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD
64,631,784 (2020: USD 53,498,483). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post
year end.

+« Loan counterparty 7 is a South African based coal miner and trader which is focused primarily on
export. The borrower's reserves are estimated at 53 million tons of coal with a life of mine of up
to 40 years. The recoverability of this facility is expected to be 5 years based on the cash flows
from operations driven by mining activities and trading the high-grade coal or alternatively a sale
of the underlying resource to a buyer is being explored. The exposure as of 31 December 2021,
net of cofunder, amounts to USD 21,157,369 (2020: USD 18,281,213). There was no repayment
from the counterparty post year end.

+ The remaining of the stage 3 entities amounts to USD 198,590,403 (2020: USD 156,626,335).
Those are clients that have breached on their financial and repayment covenants, The Investment
Manager is confident that repayment would typically come from operating cash flow from the sales
of the underlying commuodities which the Fund has financed or from repayment of debtors that are
due to the client. Qut of USD 198,590,403, USD 74,497,647 has been classified under maturity of
1 to 4 years and USD 121,742,685 as undated. The remaining USD 2,350,071 was repaid post year
end.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Investment Manager exercises step in rights

In some circumstances, trying to work with the borrowers does not always succeed and when there is value
at risk for any exposure, the Investment Manager would work to exercise its right to step into the trade to
execute and recoup the investment. This would mean to take over the operation side of the business to
liguidate in an orderly manner to derive benefit and yield to the investors. Such actions would mean that
the share pledges are being exercised or the stock is being taken over to be sold via an SPV and would
require in most cases time, resources and even additional capital to derive maximum return from the trade
while ensuring capital preservation. The Investment Manager would work the best possible route to recover
from the investment given the actual environment in which the client was operating and such actions could
be adjusted from time to time depending on circumstances.

+ Loan counterparty 8 is an exposure linked to Iron Ore. The Company taking possession of the low-
grade product to secure the collateral and is using a related party Special Purpose Vehicle to liquidate
the collateral on its behalf, The price risk has been mitigated via a hedging agresment entered by the
Company on behalf of the borrower and 2 bank. The Company does not take any derivative risk in the
hedge transaction and neither incur any lgss or gain. The delivery of the product is intended for
offtakers mainly in China. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD
109,033,975 (2020: USD 141,222,809). Post year end repayment from the loan counterparty amounts
to USD 8,103,033.

« Loan counterparty 9 is a South African based coal processor and trader with its primary business being
supplying energy into South Africa’s langest electricity producer Eskom which generates close to 100%
of the country’s power, The primary option for recoverability will come from the cash flows generated
through the supply of commodities into long-term offtake contracts with Eskom or blue chip off takers
which expected to be & years. Secondary option for recovery includes refinancing through participation
by co-lenders as well as increasing the stake of the private equity investors which is expected to take
2 years. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 24,118,322 (2020:
UsD 21,756,312). There was a repayment of USD 860,927 from the counterparty post year end.

« Loan counterparty 10 is an exposure linked to a coal based powerplant in Senegal where delays in the
completion resulted in the Investment Manager to perfecting the shares that were pledged at time of
disbursement. The business restructuring has been approved by the courts of Senegal. The flow of
recovery would be settlement through normal operations of business or selling the shares, which
remains a key focus, particularly with the early stages of the plant's gas conversion gaining
momentum. Payment mechanics are dealt within the terms of the Power Purchase agreement while
the cost of environmental matters is assumed within the restructuring provision as well as fixed
operations and management cost. The project will require additional funding of approximately USD
10m for a meaningful restructuring to enable sustainable operability. At this point the Investment
Manager is still assessing which option would be the most economical route and efficient for the Fund
while taking into consideration the macro-economic factor in Senegal. The exposure as of 31 December
2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD 26,728,802 (2020: USD 23,626,506). There has been no
repayment from the counterparty post year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

rabili for in
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Tnvestment Manager exercises step in rights (continued)

= Loan counterparty 11 is an exposure in coal where the Investment Manager took effective ownership
over the shares of a borrower, which owned property, mining resources, plant and rail siding
operations in South Africa, in order to recover the loan exposure. The Investment Manager has
received and accepted an offer of ZARS0m from a third party, This was deemed to be the most
appropriate offer given the environmental risk and related liabilities associated with the counterparty.
The Fund will receive the proceeds upon conclusion of the sales and purchase agreement and
regulatory approvals. The exposure as of 31 December 2021, net of cofunder, amounts to USD
57,594 775 (2020: USD 49,687,723). There has been no repayment from the counterparty post year
end.

Non-perfarming loans

These loans are typically borrowers where most if not all working solutions have been pursued to recoup
the investment and interest but have failed to come to an agreement. These borrowers would have paid
partially the initial amount but unfortunately for several reasons, they are unable to continue amortize the
remaining balance and the only remaining option is legal recourss where the Investment Manager would
try to have a judgement on either personal properties or enforcement of guarantee. These are time
consuming avenues and if the legal cost outweighs the benefit of recouping any remaining balances, write
off stage is being considered. Non-performing loans for the year 31 December 2021 amounted to USD
9,852,968 (2020: USD 8,389,431) net of expected credit losses. There has been no repayment post year
end.

2021 2020

uso uso

Expected credit losses ("ECL™) on 1 January 231,979,107 113,263,380
Loans written off* (7,331,447) (12,379,900)
Amount reclassified to BCL** - (1,518,555)
Increase in ECL 157,366,365 132,614,182
ECL on 31 December 382,014,025 231,979,107

*|pans written off amounting to USD 7,331,447 (2020: USD 12,379,900) were approved by the Proactive
Risk Management Committee and includes six (2020: eight) loan counterparties which has residual balance
from the actual trade facility and the remaining value did not have collateral to support the loan. These
loans were accounted in full as expected credit losses. Management believes that it would be very remote
to recover anything further as court and legal costs would not make any economic benefits.

** Amount reclassified to ECL amounted to USD NIL (2020: USD 1,518,555).
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 [CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Expected Lifetirme expected Credit impaired
Gross loan balances net crodit losses credit losses financial assets POCI Total
of co-funded portion
uso uso uso uso uso
Cpening Balance on 1
January 2021 75,475,506 96,453,749 665,144,228 39,106,953 BTG, 280,466
Inberest income net of oo
funder 7961557 9,362,165 B4, 906,564 - 100,230,266
Trarsfer to credd impaired
financial assets (11,408,582} {1,636,817) 52,154,352 (39,106,953) -
Financial assets transfermed
o STF - - - - -
Financial assets transferred
from STF - - - - -
Financial assets originated 107,847,900 - 41,416,365 - 1410, 264,265
Financial asoeds repaid {131,032,406) {27,413,070) (34,737,120) L (193,182,596)
Financial assets transfesrad
1o FYTPL - “ - £ B
Wrise-ofs - - -IT.EH:I“.HT} = {?,331,44?]
Closing balance as of 31
December 2021 48,843,976 76,764,027 BO1,652.972 - 927,260,975
*Financial assets trardfemed between segragated podfohios sre ncorded ot coging Met Asset Value and 25 tuch no profit of les 8 recognised,
Page 34
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 {CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE [CONTINUED)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Expected Lifetime expected  Credd impained financial
Grogs boan balances nel of credi dosses crdit losses asies POLCT Tatal
co-funded portion
uso uso uso UsD Uso
Opening Balies on 1
January 2020 186,825,621 1672280 570,569,015 26,827,300 786,594,315
Interest income net of co- 23,796,058 2,161 TE458.911 3,375,888 106,523,044
Turider
Transfer 0 crédid impained (123,772.553) 03,586,136 29,786,415 -
financlal assets
Finarcial assets transfienrsd 2,008,223 - 776,923 - 2,785,156
o 5TF
Finanial assets transfered (31,00%,903) (580.240) (600, 744) = {32,190,667)
froen STE*
Financial asssts oaginatad 51,350,600 7.724 877 6,047,200 BA23,794 73,956,673
Financlal assets repaid (33,581,943) (6, 541,467) 7.060,010 (20, 128) {33,383,528)
Fingricial assets transfermed - - {17,677, 215) - {17.677.21%)
o PYTPL
Wite-offs {150.834) . (49,576, 262) - (9, 727,096)
Clesing balance as of 31
December 2020 5,475,506 4537498 565,244,228 39,106,953 536,280,465

- - - - - [EET TS O

*Financial assets transferred betwesn segregabed portfiolios are reconded at closing Net Asset Value and s such no profit or koss is recognised,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
{A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Credit risk cxposures 12 month expected  Lifetime expected credit  Credit impaired financial
fully mitigated through credit bosses losses assets Total
o - funding agreements
uso uso usp usp
2021
Opening talance on 1
Rnuary 2021 {42,405,142) . (61,701,056} (104,106,198)
Clcrsing balance a5 of 31
December 2071 14,153,630 17,149,458 632,231,635 93,634,723
Increase ) {decreate) in
co-funding {28,151,512) 17,149,458 530,579 (10,471,475}
eEEREES® e NSNS (LTI T LT
2020
Opening balance o 1
January 2020 (93,326,0m0% (2623,733) 54,463,792 (31,486,011}
Closing balance as of 31
December 2020 42,405,142 . 61,701,056 104,106,198
Increase/(decrease) in oo
Tunding (50,520,928) (2,623,733) 126,164,848 72,620,187
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
5. LOANS RECETVABLE (CONTINUED)
Expected credit losses (continued)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Credit impaired
eupocted  expected credit  finandal assets POLCT Total
credit bokses losges
usD UsD usD USD usD
Ooening balance an 1 January 2021 2,832,607 5 370,666 213,481,054 10,204,600 231,979,107
Tnberest income nét of cofisidiér 246,769 491,634 40,806,014 - 41,544,417
Transfer to creds impaired financial asssts (2,943,344) {1,070,285) 14,308,319 (10,294,690) -
Financial assets transferred to Barak Structured
Tracke Finante Segregated Portfiolio - - - . -
Financial agtets transferred from Barak
Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfola = = = - -
Increase/{decease) in BCL 8,686,508 697,946 132,290,034 - 141,674,488
Finarcial dosets onginated 2,180,200 - B,314,402 - 10,494,602
Financial assets repaid (8,795,5186) {1,458,865) (26,157,130) = [36411,511)
Financial astets transferned to FYTPL = = = N .
Write-offs " - (7, 267,078) - (7, 267,008)
Closing balance as of 31 December 2021 2,207,314 4,031,006 375,775,615 = 382,014,025

EEEEEEEE ExEaEEEE EESoREEE ETTE=CEE CLEEE s

The loan book has been reconciled directly from opening position o closing position,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED
5. LOANS RECEIVABLE {CONTINUED)
Expected credit losses (continued)
Sage 1 Hage 2 Sage 3
12 monith Lifetime expected Credit impaired
expbcieg credit credit losses financial assets FOCI Total
losses
usD usD LsD usD s
Cpening balance on 1 Jaruany 2020 2,825,658 10,521 101,730,809 8,596,382 113,263,380
Initenest income nel of cofurder 348,301 1,642 15,585,899 1,102,124 17,137 966
Transfer to credit impaired financial assets (3,183,246} 1,510,605 1,220,751 451,630 .
Financlal assets transferned to Barak Struchuned
Trade Finante Segregated Portfolio 25,658 - 20,2505 . #5875
Firncial assets transferred from Barak
Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfiolio (354,736) (3,260) (21,079 - {385,275)
Increase/{decrease) in ECL 1,872,752 3,545,594 101,052,625 106,771,371
Financial assels orginated 1,695,360 43,407 9,318 45,469 1,813,554
Financial assets repaid (F93,620) {38,444) (546,143 {8965) (1,281,174)
Firancial ssets transfisrred to FYTPL - - (205,454} - (209,454}
Wiribe-oifs {3.451) = {5,173.640) . {5.177,085)
Clesing balance as of 31 December 2020 2,832,657 5,370,666 213,481,054 10,294,650 131,579,107

The loan book has been reconciled directly from opening position to dlosing position,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Reason for transfers between stages

In 2021, the Fund transferred “12-month ECL" amounting to USD 2,943,344 (2020: USD 1,510,805) and
Tifetime ECL" amounting to USD 1,070,285 (2020: USD 1,672,441) to’ ‘credit impaired financial assets” due
to financial breach and inability to meet the contractual terms.

Unlisted debt securities comprised of asset backed debt in agricuftural trade finance and food-related
transactions that constitute the primary business activity of the Segregated Portfolios of the Company.
Contractually these transactions were set in the form of repurchase financing agreements or structured
working capital loan agresments or borrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance and term loan.
Underlying securities can be in the form of commaodities, fixed assets and share pledges. Collateral obtained
by the Fund under standard repurchase agreements are not recognized because the Borrower retains all the
risks and rewards based on the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition are
therefore not met by the Borrower. The repurchase financing agreements or structured working capital loan
agreements or borrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance are calculated based on a desired
transaction yield considering counterparty risk which could be both short term and long term as such the
transactions are considered to be financing transactions backed by collateral which can be in the form of
physical stocks or floating charge such as debtor's assignment and is classified as loans receivables. Interest
rates range between 5% and 30% per annum and are compounded in terms of each borrowing contract
amounting to USD 1,020,895,698 (2020: USD 980,386,664). The loans receivable is measured at
amortised cost,

The Fund applies the Standard and Poor's (S&P) Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) model for rating
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) purposes. Although the Fund has several types of
borrowers and loans in the portfolio, the Investment Manager chose the SME model as this applies to most
of the portfolio, was the most appropriate fit, in the Investment Manager's opinion, and would produce a
result similar to what S&P would publish for the counterparties that are rated. The Investment Manager’s
options for rating a portfolio of deals were either to purchase a rating model, like the S&P SME model that
the Investment Manager did, or develop an internal model based on Investment Manager’s prior experience
with defaults in the portfolio. Unfortunately, Investment Manager does not have a statistically significant
portfolio of counterparties or default history to make such a model viable or acceptable.

For PD purposes, the S&P SME model has quantitative and qualitative aspects. For the quantitative part,
Investment Manager captures financial information into the model from the latest financial information
available to them, preferably audited financial statements or management accounts. This requires a proper
understanding of the financial inputs to determine how to input items into the model. The income statement
and statement of financial position are usually input in full but the critical items, like EBITDA, debt and equity
are used by the maodel to calculate certain debt ratios, which determine the rating. In inputting a counterparty
into the model, the Investment Manager also must capture the industry and country metric which is a
mandatory field in the model. The model also incorporates a Sovereign Intervention Overlay, which is only
applicable if the counterparty rating is better than the rating of the country of risk. If this is the case, the
counterparty rating may be a reduced by few notches in line with the country rating (although not capped
to the country rating). The Investment Manager under certain circumstances may rate a deal based on
guarantors, insurance providers or off takers.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

5. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

The valuation committee, under certain circumstances, rate a deal based on guarantors, insurance providers
ar off takers.

For LGD purposes, Investment Manager captures loan information and the collateral associated with the
facility into the model. In this part of the model, the ranking of the facility is relevant (senior, subordinated)
and to note the amount of loans that rank ahead, pari-passu with and/ or subordinate to the loan. In addition
to loading loan specific collateral, the model also requires the input of collateral pledged to other pari-passu
loans, The value was inputted for collateral depends on the nature of the collateral. For working capital
(stock, debtors), the full value per invoice and debtors according to the agresments (for e.g., debtors might
be < 90 days and specific debtors only). If it is not working capital values as per audited financials, the most
recent independent valuations for assets like property, equipment are used.

The final output of the model is a rating from CCC- to AAA and an LGD percentage, for example a rating of
B+ with an LGD of 20%. This information is usually input by a credit analyst and checked, verified and
approved by one of the two senior credit executives in the business.

The two senior credit executives in the team also have the ability to override the model if they don't believe
that the rating and/ or LGD is fair or justified. In most cases, these overrides have been to adjust the rating
and/ or LGD to a more conservative number (i.e., to increase the ECL).

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

uso uso

Amount receivable from related party (Mote 17(a){v) & 17(c)) 3,282,364 1,013,357
Other receivables* 65,480 -
Prepayment of expenses 14,437 31,099
Legal expenses incurred on behalf of prospective borrowers - 486,884
3,362,281 1,501,340

*Other receivables represent a security deposit to a legal firm which expects to incur potential legal expenses
on nonperforming borrowers. The amount remains as a receivable to the Fund until the expenses are
incurrad.

The other receivables are measured at amortised cost. Since the amount of ECL allowance on other

receivables is not material, there was no expected credit loss recognised. This is considered to approximate
the fair value,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES
2021 2020
usD usD
Management fee 1,316,350 1,878,913
Audit fee 82,400 139,368
Administration fee 34,165 38,707
Directors’ fee 5937 -
Broker fes 1,233 -
Pricing agent fee 1,910 -
Custodian fee = 1,863
Cther accruals - 812
1,441,995 2,059,163

The accrued expenses are measured at amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value.
Except for the audit fees for the year ended 31 December 2021, the above accruals were repaid after year
end, Accruals for year ended 31 December 2020 were fully settled during 2021,

8. LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES

-

2021 2020
a) Loans payable uso ust
Loan counterparty 1 46,818,690 50,906,285
Loan counterparty 2 27,018,870 30,639,457
Loan counterparty 3 3,758,440 3,758,440
Loan counterparty 4 3,405,557 2,756,704
Loan counterparty 5 - 3,137,100
Loan counterparty 6 - 3,753,611
Interest accrued 12,633,166 9,154,601
Due to co-funders 93,634,723 104,106,198

The loans payable are term agreements which relate to deals that have been co-financed. The risk and
returns that the Fund bears, is effectively mirmored proportionately back to the co-financier as part of the
participation agreement. A participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered
where all commercial and legal terms are agreed. Refer to Note 5 for detail on co-funding. The loans payable
is measured at amortised cost. Provision for expected credit losses on cofunder balance for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounts to USD 25,572,661 (2020: UsSD 22,289,156).
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

8. LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
Refer to note 5 for detail on co funding.

2021 2020
uso uso
Loans payable as of 01 lanuary 104,106,198 131,316,648
Proceeds received from finance obtained 7,285,585 67,216,383
Repayments of finance obtained (25,222,968) (99,954,633)
Interest charged on loans payable 9,798,477 15,308,587
Interest paid on Isans payable (2,332,569) (9,780,787)
Loans payable as of 31 December 93,634,723 104,106,198
b) Other payables
Security deposit* 2,678,763 243,110
Income received in advance 429,086 528,733
Amount due to Agent 452,428 790,510
Amount due to Segregated Portfolio in the Company (Note 17(c)) - 227,597
3,560,277 1,789,950

*Security deposit relates to insurance claim received on two of the counterparties due to inability to repay
their loan upon maturity, A legal case is currently under progress to recover full amount from the
counterparty. The amount due will be treated as a repayment of loan upon final settlement of loan receivable.

9. INVESTMENT INCOME
(a) Interest income

2021 2020
uso Uush

Interest income on loans receivable at
amortised cost 112,519,217 124,271,204
Facility fees 569,135 1,206,520
Interest on placement 8,197 247,423
Origination faes 6,900 23,700
Service fees 77,906 -
Transaction fea - 12,067
113,181,355 125,760,914

———————— ————————

The portion of the loan origination fees that relate to the creation of a financial asset are amortised over the
term of the loan on an effective interest basis,

Interest rates are between 5% and 30% (2020: 5% and 30%) per annum as per the relevant financing
contracts.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FIMNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

9. INVESTMENT INCOME (CONTINUED)

(b) Profit margin

2021 2020
usp usp
Profit margin from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,529,665 205,745

The Fund earns a percentage of return as profit margin on monies loaned. The Fund is currently earning a
35% (2020: 35%) total profit share when the commodities are sold. The profit share is calculated in respect
of each commodity transaction entered with the loan counterparty; a company incorporated in the United
Arab Emirates.

{c) Fair value gain on financials asset at fair value through profit or loss

2021 2020
usb usD

Met change in unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (29,325,427) 30,979,641
Realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,172,690 7,154,918

-

(27,152,737) 38,134,759

The above relates to fair value gain on deals classified under financial assets through profit or loss. Refer to
note 18.11.

10. OTHER INCOME

2021 2020

usoD usp

Rebate income* 97,042 126,547
Other income** 520,918 89,801
Realised gain on equalisation - 266,806
Realised gain on reinstatement of subscription - 428,766
617,960 911,920

*Rebate income relates to Class B3 and B4 redeemable participating shares. Class B3 is Euro based, it inherits
the same characteristics that are embedded for Class B1 and B2 and thus the return should be consistent.
The Fund applies a rebate income [ rebate expense to mitigate the currency fluctuation. The Investment
Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 2.7% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund for
Class B4 shares. A rebate expense is accounted for the additional 0.7%.

**Other income includes USD 508,592 which relates to foreign exchange gain on revaluation of a sundry
creditor.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

11. INTEREST EXPENSE

2021 2020

UsD uso

Loan counterparty 1 5,735,122 7,224,721
Loan counterparty 2 4,049,455 4,560,706
Other interest expense® 1,245,056 3,523,160

Interest expense written off** (1,231,156)

9,798,477 15,308,587

*Other interest expense relates to the other co-funders to the Fund under the limit of USD 600,000 (2020:
USD 1,000,000) as described in note 8 (loans payable).

=*During the year 2021, interest expense amounting to USD 1,231,156 (2020: USD Nil) was written off as
part of agreed settlement amount due to the cofunder.

12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2021 2020

uso usp

Professional and legal fees 1,241,009 733,432
Adjustment on redemption proceeds**** 319,830 -
Rebate expenses™* 282,961 172,482
Audit fees 264,432 433,171
Administration fees* 256,836 261,313
Insurance fees*** 151,546 111,959
Documentation fees 131,930 71,441
Cther operating expenses 99,324 55,825
Bank charges 60,726 72,145
Directors’ fees 47,500 47,500
Commission expense 45,000 53,400
Pricing agent fees 22,920 22,920
Custodian fees 7,200 7,200
Broker fees 6,245 2,700
Listing fees - 3,600
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
*MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) 2 Limited — Administrator

MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) 2 Limited (the “Administrator™) is the appointed Administrator of the Fund.
The Administrator is entitled to receive a minimum administration fee amounting to EUR 35,000 per annum
for the Fund. Administration fees are payable monthly in arrears at 12 base points per annum of Met Asset
Value on the last business day of that month. The Administration agreement with the Administrator was
terminated on 15" March 2022. The Fund has appointed Vistra Alternative Investments {Mauritius) Limited
as the” New Administrator” on 15th March 2022,

Total administration fees for the year amounted to USD 256,836 (2020: USD 261,313), with USD 34,165
{2020: USD 38,707} in outstanding accrued fees due to the Administrator at the end of the year.

** (lass B3 is Euro based, it inherits the same characteristics that are embedded for Class Bl and B2 and
thus the return should be consistent. The Fund applies a rebate income [/ rebate expense to mitigate the
currency fluctuation. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 2.7% per annum
of the net asset value of the Fund for Class B4 shares. A rebate expense is accounted for the additional 0.7%.

*** Insurance fees cover professional indemnity, directors and officer’s liability, crime and USA/Canada
claims.

**¥** During 2021, the Fund has paid redemptions for requests received prior to 31 December 2019,
amounting to USD 15,515,995. This was due to the suspension of the Fund since 30 March 2020 and the
Board of Directors has approved to pay the redemption proceeds in June 2021 in satisfaction of the obligation
of the Fund In respect of the redemption. Payment was made based on the NAY per share as at 31 March
2020. Adjustment on redemption proceeds relate to the difference between the NAV per share which was
redeemed as at 31 March 2020 and the NAV per share at which the redemption was paid, being 30 June
2021,

13. TAXATION

Under current Cayman Islands Laws, the Fund is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands on
either income or capital gains. Accordingly, no tax provision or liability has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements. The Fund may incur withholding tax imposed by certain countries on investment income.
The Fund did not incur any withholding tax in 2021 and 2020.

14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

The authorised share capital of the Company is USD 20,000,100 divided into 100 non-Participating voting
Management Shares of no-par value and 20,000,000 Redeemable Participating non-voting Shares of no-par
value, One Management Share of the Company has been issued to the Investments Manager for a total
contribution of USD 1.

The Fund is represented by the redeemable shares issued. These shares are issued as class B1, B2, B3 and
B4 shares, all of them carrying equal rights.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)
Subscription of Redeemable Participating shares

The Redeemable Participating Shares will be available for subscription on the first Business Day of each
month at the Subscription Price, The Subscription Price will be the Net Asset Value per Participating Share
for the relevant Class as at the close of business on the Valuation Day.

The minimum initial subscription for Class B1 Redeemable Participating Shares is USD 100,000, USD 25,000
for Class B2 Redeemable Participating Shares; EUR 25,000 for Class B3 Redeemable Participating Shares and
USD 100,000 for Class B4 Redeemable Participating Shares, provided that such minimum initial subscription
may be waived in the discretion of the Directors, provided further that any Investor's investment across all
the Segregated Portfolios of the Company is not less than USD 100,000 {or its equivalent in Euro).

The minimum additional subscriptions for Class Bl Redeemable Participating Shares are USD 20,000,
USD25,000 for Class B2 Redeemable Participating Shares; EUR 25,000 for Class B3 Redeemable Participating
Shares and USD 10,000 for Class B4 Redeemable Participating Shares.

The directors of the Fund suspended the subscription of shares in the Fund from 30 March 2020 and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements.

Rademption of Redeemable Participating shares

The B1, B2 and B4 Participating Shares are redeemable on the last day of each calendar quarter provided a
duly completed notice of redemption is received by the Administrator no less than three months prior to such
day. The redemption proceeds of the B1, B2 and B4 Redeemable Participating Shares will be paid within 30
calendar days of the end of the relevant Redemption Day.

The B3 Participating Shares are redeemable bi-annually on the last Valuation Day in December and the last
Valuation Day in June provided a duly completed notice of redemption is received by the Administrator no
less than six months prior to such day. The redemption proceeds of the B3 Participating Shares will be paid
within 30 calendar days of the end of the relevant Redemption Day.

There is no lock-in period on the Class B1, B3 or the Class B4 Participating Shares. The Class B2 Participating
Shares may not be redeemed prior to the third anniversary of the subscription for such Participating Shares
(the "Lock-In Period") except with the prior written consent of the Directors.

The redemption price for each Participating Share in the Fund is equal to the Net Asset Value per Participating
Share of each Class on the Redemption Day, The Net Asset Value per Participating Share of each Class is
determined as of the close of business on each Valuation Day in accordance with the provisions set out in
the Private Offering Memorandum.

Valuation day is defined as the last valuation day in each calendar quarter or such other as may be determined
by the Directors.

The Fund strives to invest the subscription received on the issue of redeemable shares in investments that
meet the Fund's investment abjectives while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet shareholder redemptions.
The Fund does not have any externally imposed capital reguirements. The Fund with the approval of the
Board can extend the suspension of subscription and redemption in accordance with the terms of the private
offering memorandum to allow the Fund the time needed to liguidate its investment portfalio to service
redemption requests.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Redemption of Redeemable Participating shares (continued)

The Directors may compulsorily redeem all the Participating Shares held by a Shareholder. Participating
Shares will be compulsorily redeemed at the Redemption Price prevailing on the Redemption Day next
following the issuance of a notice of compulsory redemption to the relevant Shareholder(s).

Redemption during for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:

2021 2020

usoD UsD

Opening balance - -
Shares redeemed during the year® 35,515,997 107,149,325

Payment on redeemable participating shares redeemed (28,617,011) (107,149,325)

Closing balance

During 2021, the Fund has paid redemptions for requests received prior to 31 December 2019, amounting to
USD 15,515,997, The redeemed shares were redeemable on 31 March 2020 and became redemption payable
by the Fund as at 31 March 2020. The redeemed shares were treated as cancelled as at date of the redemption
further to the suspension of the Fund on 30 March 2020, Pursuant to legal advice received, the Fund has paid
the above the redemption during 2021.

As part of the exit strategy of the Fund, 2 compulsory redemption amounting to USD 20,000,000 was paid to
all shareholders in proportion to their shareholding as of 30 September 2021, Out of the USD 20,000,000, USD
6,898,986 was still payable as at 31 December 2021. USD 2,309,737 was paid post year end and remaining
redemption will be paid once the Administrator receive the complete KYC document from the investors,

The below table outlines the share activity of the Fund for the year ended 31 December:

Opening Closing

number of number of

redeemable Redeemable Redeemable Shares redeemable

2021 shares Shares Issued Redeemed shares
Class B1 2,422,110 - (106,433) 2,315,677
Class B2 538,487 - (13,122) 525,365
Class B3 9,680 - (236) 9,444
Class B4 28,858,314 . (703,220) 28,155,094
31,828,591 (823,011) 31,005,580
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

14. REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES (CONTINUED)

The below table outlines the share activity of the Fund for the year ended 31 December;

Opening Closing
number of number of
redeemable Redeemable Redeemable Shares redeemable
2020 shares Shares Issued Redeemed shares
Class Bl 2,168,057 571,904 (317,851) 2422110
Class B2 560,013 - (21,526) 538,487
Class B3 9,671 9 - 9,680
Class B4 13,555,348 15,302 966 - 28,858,314
16,293 089 15,874,879 (339,377) 31,828,591
Net asset value per share
Par value 2021 2020
uso uso UsD
Class B1 100 279.77 317.36
Class B2 100 102.91 116.74
Class B3 100 107.10 125.22
Class B4 1 0.85 0.87
15. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2021 2020
uso uso
Net decrease in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from
operations (98,364,692) (2,037,991)
Increase in expected credit losses 157,366,365 132,614,182
Unrealised loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 29,325,427 (30,979,841)
Realised fair value (gain)/loss on financials asset at fair
value through profit or loss {2,172,690) (7,154,918)
Interest expense 9,798,477 15,308,587
Interest income (113,181,355) (125.760,914)
Realised gain on reinstatement of subscription* - (428,766)
Profit margin {1,529,665) (205,745)
(18,758,133) (18,645,406)
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The identification of reportable seaments is determined based on a consideration of services, geographical
areas, economic and regulatory environment. The business is widely distributed with no reliance on any
major customers. The business sells a single product that enables clients to conduct operations, which can
be in the form of repurchase financing agreements or structured working capital loan agreements or
barrowing base structured facilities, bridge finance which could be both short term and long term. Underlying
securities can be in the form of commodities, fixed assets and share pledges. Management assesses
informaticn refating to the performance of this single segment on multiple levels and from multiple
perspectives. Whilst data analysis facilitates the detailed evaluations of any aspect of the business, all
elements are regarded as interconnected, and no part of the business can be truly regarded as separable
from the rest. Collateral assessment for a repo agreement or structured working capital loan are conducted
at a holistic level of the business. Accordingly, any perspective or level of the business reported on is regarded
as having met the aggregation criteria regarding products and services, type or class of customers,
distribution method and common regulatory environment. Over and above the interest charged, a facility fee
is often being charged to the client as well to boost return to the Fund and this forms part an integral part
of the effective interest rate.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influance over
the other party in making financial or operational decisions. One Management Share has been issued by the
Company to the Barak Holding Trust for a total contribution of USD 1.

a} Barak Fund Management Limited - Investment Manager
i,  Management fees

The Fund has an Investment Management Agreement with Barak Fund Management Limited (the
"Investment Manager”). Pursuant to this agreement the Investment Manager is entitled to receive a
management fee of 2% (except for Class B4 2.7%) per annum of the net asset value of the Segregated
Portfolio payable monthly in arrears.

The total management fees for the year amounted to USD 16,438,634 (2020: USD 17,079,472), with USD
1,316,350 (2020: UsD 1,878,413) in outstanding accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at the end
of the year.

il. Performance fees

The performance fee is calculated and accrued in respect of each l-year period (the "calculation year")
ending March, June, September and December. For each calculation, the performance fee is equal to 20%
of the amount by which net asset value reflects a rate of return that exceeds the hurdle rate equal to LIBOR
and a High-Water Mark. The hurdle rate is the net asset value at the time of issue of that unit or, if issued
in a previous calculation year, the high-water mark brought forward, increased by the three-month UK LIBOR
rate, The performance fiee in respect of each calculation year is calculated by reference to the net asset value
before deduction of any accrued performance fee,

Total performance fees for the year amounted to USD NIL (2020: USD Nil) with USD NIL (2020: USD Nil)
in putstanding accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at the end of the year. Performance fees has
not been adjusted further to after year-end adjustments made to the financials. The Fund has received a
legal opinion whereby it states that there is no provision in the POM of the Fund that would afford the
Company the right to claw back fees that have already been paid to the Investment Manager.

The net asset value stands at USD 726,654,773 (2020: USD 860,817,172) at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

a) Barak Fund Managemaent Limited - Investment Manager (continued)

iii.  Shares subscribed by Investment Manager

2021 Number of Amount
Shareholding shares uso

Class Bl shares issued to BFML 2% 49,072 13,723,666

2020

Class Bl shares issued to BFML 2% 50,298 15,977,305

iv. Rebate income receivable from the Investment Manager/ (Rebate expenses pavable to the

Investment Manager)

2021 2020
uso uso
Rebate income from Class B3 Redeemable Participating shares 3327 28,981
Rebate expenses from Class B4 Redeemable Participating shares (12,169) (13,125)

v.  Amount payable to the Investment Manager
2021 2020
uso uso
Cpening balance 438,019 -
Additions 277,980 2,349,635
Repayment (568,886) (1,911,616)
Closing balance 147,113 438,019

The above represents movement in expenses paid on behalf of the Fund and rebate payable/receivable, The

amount payable to the Investment Manager was repaid in full post yvear end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 3021 {CONTINUED)
17, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
() Commaon deactors and sharsholders to tha Investment Manager and tha loan counterpaty
31 December 2021
Grosd loans receivable, net of cofunder partion
Loan Laan Laoan Laam Laan Laam
Counterparty & © party B o party € Counterparty D Counterparty € Counterparty F Total
usSD usD USD UsD usD USD uso

Cipsening Balanos on 1
January 2021 19,732,218 54667, 180 16,544,056 101, 769481 11,318,631 90,026 204,111,592
Intgrest income . TAT0456 . . 534,085 79,367 5,883,908
Financlal sgsets transfer 101,769,481 - 3,187,053  {101,769,481) . - 3,187,053
Financial smety repaid (11,628,117} (55,283) {1,025, B8E) - (13,152,716) - (24,859,002)
Financial ssets
eriginated 9, FEF 507 118, 180 - - 40,754 5,585,571
Fair value [lss)/gain on
francal assets al Tair
valug through profit o
less (29,628,366} i 302,930 - = (29,325427)
Claging balsnoe 31
December 2021 90,035 513 62,700,533 19,008,163 - 210,186 163,053 655
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SFC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 3021 {CONTINUED)
17, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [CONTINUED)
(&) Common dirpctors and sharsholdor (o the Investment Manager and the boan counterparty (continued)
31 December 2021
Expocted crisdit logses.
Laan Loan Loan Loam Loan Loam
Counterparty A* G party B © party C* Counterparty D Counterparty € Counterparty F Total
usp UsD UsD USD usp usnD usD
Opening balance o 1
January 221 * (1,375,702) - * (18,741) (823) (1,396,266)
Intarast kstmes - (2302,031) - - - (8,336} (2:310,367)
Firusteial Stoets trasifer - - - - - -
Financial assets repaid = 15067 = = = 15,967
Financial sssets onginated - {34,133) - - (5,230} (39,363}
(Increase) [ decrease in
ECL - (14,413,303) * - 19,741 (8,632) (14,402,194)
Clasing balance 31
Becomboer 2021 - {18,104, 202) - = x {33,021} (18,132, 223)
*Loan coufenparties A and C are dassified 84 ibans recerabls 8 fair valpe through profit or lois.
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 {CONTINUED)
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(B} Common dinectors and shareholder to the Investment Manager and the loan counterparty {continwed)
31 December 2020
Grovd boand racendble
Loan Loan Loan Loan Losn Loan
Counfterparty A Counterparty 8 Counterparty C Counberparty D Counterparty E ‘Counterparty F Total
S0 LsD LsD usD (1= LIS uso
Cpening balance on 1
Jaemsaery 2000 8,425,550 47 594 B0 16,540,838 36,847 495 12,540,415 0,492 112489,629
Tnkmrest Income - B9T5, 99 . . 1475359 18,108 B4 A7T
Financial assets transfer (751,628) o - ’ (279, 764) = (1031,392)
Financial assets nepaid {11,062,758) (27, 241) - (2,368,958) (2,817,.359) = [16276,316)
Fnancal assels orignabed 15,388, 249 23,593 3218 27,440,313 " 1435 42, 585, 195
Fair valise gain on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss TS E . 79,850,631 - < ATSTI AN
Closing badance 31
Decamber 2020 19,722,118 54,567,180 16,544,056 101,765,481 11,316,631 S0,006 204,111,592
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i) Commman directors and sharcholder to the Investment Manager and the lsan counterparty (comtinesd )
31 Decemnber 2020
Ewpeshid crodit kaag
Loan Lo Loty Loan Lian Lean
Courterparty A Counterparty B Counterparty C Courlerparty O Counterparty E Counberparty F Tokal
s [1-+] ush usp st s usk
Dpening batance on 1
Mrusary 2020 - [141,537) {24,543) [6:150) (28,801} {64 (201,050}
Inberest income - (20, 702) - - (3284} 7 (23,959}
Financial asssts ransfer = - - ¥ 623 ) 623
Financial asssts repaid = &1 ; £ 6,271 a 6,352
Financial asses originated - [rL] - - - &7 {23
(Incregsa) | degreate in
- (1213474} 24,543 6,150 5450 {837 {1,178,168)
Ocsing balnoe 31
Decemiber 30240 : (1,375, 702} : . (18741} {823 {1,596, 268}
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NOTES TO THE FIMAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

(CONTINUED)
17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

{c) Recelivable/ (payables) in the Segregated Portfolfo

- Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated
Portfolio

- Barak Impact Finance Segregated Portfolio

- Barak Asha Segregated Portfolio

- Barak Shanta Segregated Portfolio

- Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio

- Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio

- Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio®

* Amount receivable from Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio (" Mikepo”) represents legal expenses incurred
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DECEMBER 2021

2020
uso

5,625
5,625
5,625
550,838
2,000
(227,597)
5,625

by the Fund on behalf of Mikopo for loan counterparties which are common in both Mikopo and the Fund.

(d) Loans transactions between Segregated Portfolio

Barak Impact Finance Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Impact Finance Segregated Portfolio to
Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Impact Finance Segregated Portfolio

Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio to Barak
Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Mikopo Segregated Portfolio

Barak Asha Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Asha Segregated Portfolio to Barak
Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Asha Segregated Portfolio

Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated Portfolio
Loans transferred by Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio
Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Shariah Trade Finance Fund Segregated Portfolio
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
{d) Loans transactions between Segregated Portfolio (continued)

2021 2020
uso UsD
Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio
Loans transferred by Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio to Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio - -
Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Fortfolio to Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio - (3,568,636)
(3,568,636)

Prior to financial year 2021, delas were transferred to and from the Fund to rebalance the portficlio in terms of
investment limits as defined in the Private Placement Memorandum. A participating certificate is signed by
both parties for each deal entered whereby all commercial and legal terms are agreed. The loans are
transferred net of expected credit losses and funds are paid/received by the transferee,

2021 2020
usD usD
{e) Loan receivable from Barak Shanta Segregated
Portfolio
Receivable from related party 4,848,194 2,843,821

These are deals that have been co-financed by the Fund in Barak Shanta Segregated Portfolio. The risks and
retums are effectively mirrored proportionately back to the Fund as part of the participation agreement. A
participating certificate is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered where all commercial and
legal terms are agreed. The deals co- financed were at an interest rate of 13.75%. USD 1,341,533 (2020:
LISD 194,493) was received by the Fund post year end.

f) Key management personnel - Directors’ fee

2021 2020

uso Ush

Annual directors’ fees for the year 47,500 47,500
Professional fees paid during the year 174,922 -
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (specifically fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Fund's overall
risk management programme focuses on the evaluation of credit risk and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall
business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk management philosophy and has established
processes to monitor and controd such risks.

18.1 Market risk

The Fund's financial instruments include:
- Loans receivable,
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Loans receivable from related party
- Cash and cash equivalents,
- Amount receivable from broker; and
Other receivables excluding prepayments
The Fund 5 exposure to market risk are as follows;

18.2 Price risk

Price risk arises from investments for which market prices in the future are uncertain. The Fund is not exposed
to price risk as of 31 December 2021 and 2020, as it did not hold any market exposed instruments.

18.3 Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk

The Fund’s interest-bearing financial assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fuctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates. The majority of the Fund's loans receivable are issued at foeed
interest rates and are measured at amortised cost, The variable interest rate loans are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The table below summarises the Fund’s exposure to interest rate as well as maturity risks. It includes the
Fund's assets at amortised cost, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and
from inception of the contracts. It also shows the Fund's split between fixed and variable interest rate
securities, as well as non-interest-bearing securities. The loans receivable is shown net of provision for
expected credit losses,
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HOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 {CONTINUED)
18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTIMWED)
18.3 Interest rate risk | contineed)
Exposeure to foterest rate rigk {continwed)
31 Decamber 2021
3 Months or ER T Gioll  1todyears Undated Tatal Portion of Portion of Partion of tofal
less mionths mionths total which s total which whilch Is non -
fixed IS variable intmrast Daaring
Assets uso uso usn usp usp uso uso S uso
Lt reCEhvabie
= Amirtad
oo TA18.82 152,37 1775455 246, 06D 487 NG, 740,573 638.BELETY 448, 258 045 100,622 727 -
Lioges macahable
- TR 14,751 286 105,051,578 125,788 21 - - 123,788 M1
Dher
recEraties 5547 545 - 35T 5 - 3547 et
Lo s ehabie
Frowm redated
pany 4,545,194 = 4,548,194 4 040,194 =
Aok due
Eriamy Bk 7 000,000 8,157,947 15257647 N 15,257.647 N
Cagh and cash
Efuivalents 46,337,408 . 46,337 408 ] 18,216,379 18121079
Totad aisets 45,456,190 71 900 662 10,571,454 D, BT 487 503,00, 195 B2 A58 000 453,107,140 34,056, 70 145,254,188
Troe marterity baackets of the financial assets and Rabiites relates o Bguidity.
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BARAK STRLUCTURED TRADE FIMANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LTMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR INDED 31 DECEMBER 3021 (CONTINUED)
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18,3 Intorest eabe risk (continued)
Erposure b interest rate risk (continved)
31 Decenber 2021 (continued)
3 Months or 3t & G0l 1 todyears Undated Tatal Portion of  Portion of total  Portion of total
less meanths months tatal which which is  which ks mon -
I Thoesd variable interest bearing
[134] usn wsn UsD USD LSD usD UsD S0y
Liabilities
Atrued
EADEERS [1,441,995) - {1440, 595) - {1,441,995)
L =
iyl (986,911) (30517.968)  (BLTXE4)  [(9REMTM)  (W.4901E65) (49,142,556} =
Crhad pavadies (3,560,277} = ¥ (3,560,277} = . (3.560277)
Resderrphon
iyl (1,230,330  (1,023,853)  (4,535.803) {6,558 SEE) {6,558, 585}
Total
Habsilities (7.228,513)  (1,023,853) (4,635803) (I09A7.560)  (607rSE42) (105 SERSED)  (H.452.168) (49,142, 556) (10,908 255)
Interest rate
il
ERpOSUrE ALITTHTT 20879809 7335691 215168,518 44138383 TROSULO46 408514572 184,954,147 133,35 507

The makurity buckets of the financial asets and Kabilties relabes to liguidity,
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLID OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
1B, FIMANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT (CONTIMNUED)
18.3 Interest rate risk {continued)
Exposure to interest rate risk (continwed)
31 December 2020
3 Months or ERL T AR 1004 yoars Liretated Towl  Poion of tal Fortion of Porgion of iokal
b Mok mankhs which i foeed  Rolal which & which i non -
varlable interest bearing
Aasels. usD usD o =D =D usn 1= LI uso
Liodns fogmhabis
= Ammoritsed Cost
105,801, 168 15,47 008 30881401 280 830,500 2158380 Ta8, 407557 S, 78T 476 230,620,081
Loang recshiabls
- FYTRL 1477422 - 5726 585 113,640,592 19,731,009 153,378,009 - - 153,378,209
e Bk - 1470241 - - - 1470241 - - 1470241
Lot PeCTrvaiie
from retated
party TA43 801 = = = = 2,843,801 284380
Amcunt dus
fersm brckes
+A15,950 . . d . 4,815,550 . 4,615,950
Cash and cash
Equnsienty L8002, 606 * L] * E 8,005,606 ] 13,509,303 44,116,503
Total poiets 155 SA1 36T bl ] 6000 05T 363480912 IAR R G840, 0,831,557 5,145,104 158,504, TEY
The mariarity beckets of the financial awsets and kabStes relates to hguidiy.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLID
{A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 [OONTINUED)
18, FINARCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
18.3 Imterest rate risk (conthneed)
Erpasure fo faterest rale risk (comtinued)
31 December 2020 (oontinued)
3 Honthe o iwd 61l lodyears Undatied Total  Fortion of total Pewrtion of intal Portiom of total
[ =3 months monthe which it fioed  which i varible which k& non =
Inteness Baaring
s [~ ] uso uso usD S0 =D usD wo
Liakikbes
Arrugd
P {2/055,163) - b = - {2,055, 163) G - (2,055,163}
L
EAyEes (LH25,162)  (SA440650) (I9BET500) (BLTESINL) (BSR4 (104006155)  (EL,T004685) {43,405,732) -
Cther payibies {1,7803,550) - = ; - {1,788,550) z - (1,783,550
Toktal Babskties
(6,674.275) (54406500 (15BET601) (3L7E933) (1M  (107.555311)  (62,700,466) {41,405.732) (3.845.115)
Trberesst rale
PR SO
pERg L ] 11, T2 Eay 16, 723056 311, 0 5E) ¥ G405 B0, TRE 0T 6% AL aN 157,730,602 155 115 B0

T masturity buckets of the fnancial pssets and Rbaities relates to Rquidity,
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
{CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mon-interest-bearing loans consist of deals on which transaction fees are charged in lieu of interest,

Fair value interest rate risk- fair value movement relating to fixed interest rate and non-
interest-bearing loans receivable:

The loans receivable that are issued at fixed interest rates are measured at amortised cost. A 0.25% up or
down movement in interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant, would not have a material
effect on the fair value.

Cash flow interest rate risk- cash flow movement relating to variable interest rate loans
receivable:

At 31 December 2021, should market interest rates have risen by 1% (2020:0.25%) with all other variables
remaining constant, the increase in net interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD
1,849,541 (2020: USD 494,349). If market interest rates had lowered by 19 (2020: 0.25%), the decrease
in net interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD 1,849,541 (2020: USD 494,349).

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The Fund does not make use of any derivative instruments to manage interest rate risk. The Fund analyses
the current interest rate scenario and utilising forecasts based on macroeconomic data, uses this
information to price new loans.

18.4 Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss, should any of the Fund's borrowers and counterparties fail to fulfil
their contractual obligations to the Fund. Credit risk arises mainly from structured loans and advances, and
loan commitments arising from such lending activities,

Creclit risk is one of the largest risks for the Fund and management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. The credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit risk management team
which reports regularly to the Chief Risk Officer and Board of Directors. The maximum credit risk per class
of financial instrument is as follows:

2021 2020

usoD usD

Loans receivable — Amortised cost 638,881,673 748,407,557
Financial assets — fair value through

profit or loss 123,785,261 153,378,209

Other receivables excluding prepayments 3,347,845 1,470,241

Loans receivable from related party 4,848,194 2,843,821

Amount due from broker 15,257,647 4,615,950

Cash and cash equivalents 46,337,408 58,025,606

832,458,028 968,741,384
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement

Loans and advances

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of a
model, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of
time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood
of defaults occurring and of the associated loss ratios. The Fund measures credit risk using Probability of
Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9.

Credit risk grading

The Fund uses an external credit risk model purchased from Standard & Poor's (S&P) that reflect its
assessment of the PD of individual counterparties. The S&P Small and Medium Enterprisas (SME) rating
tool uses the S&P ratings methodology to rate a company by producing a percentage PD and LGD.

Refer to note S for more detail on credit risk mitigations relating to the co funding agreements.

For PD purposes, the tool incorporates quantitative and qualitative aspects. The quantitative aspect requires
input of the borrower's financial statements (income statement and balance sheet) as well as the country
of risk, which is considered by the tool in the rating but not capped at the country rating. The qualitative
aspect entails answering questions on the management, access to liguidity etc., which may improve or
worsen the quantitative rating. The Credit Risk Officer also has the option of answering all these questions
with “not applicable or N/A” such that the rating from the system is just a quantitative rating (i.e., just
based on the financial statements that are input).

For LGD purposes, the tool requires loan specific information to be input. This incorporates the seniority or
ranking of the facility, whether it is secured or unsecured and what it is secured by. The collateral amount
for the facility is also included here. The tool uses this information, together with the balance sheet
inforrnation input for the PD above, to determine an LGD. The Credit Risk Reviewer has the ability to
override either one or both PD and LGD and must provide a reason for doing this.

The S&P SME rating tool has been specifically calibrated for SMES in Africa and sometimes may not provide
the correct rating if the underlying transaction does not fit a typical SME or balance sheet lending profile.
For example, the tool requires financial information. Therefore, if a new business in a special purpose
vehicle that has no finandial history is being financed, the tool cannot effectively rate such a deal. This
would apply to cash flow-based lending structures or project finance type lending, where the repayment
does not rely on the balance sheet of the company but on the cash flows from the asset being financed.
Hence, there are a few deals which cannot be rated through this toal.

118/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page 63
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(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk grading (continued)

A deal can also be rated based on the creditworthiness of a guarantor, off taker or insurance provider. In
a cash flow-based lending structure for example, one can use the rating of the off taker for the facility/
client since the ability of the borrower to repay the debt largely depends on the ability of the off taker to
pay for the goods or services being supplied by the borrower,

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially at each higher risk
grade. For example, this means that the difference in the PD between an A and A- rating grade is lower
than the difference in the PD between a B and B- rating grade. These published grades are continuously
monitored and updated by S&P. The PDs asscciated with each grade are determined based on realised
default rates over the prior 12 months, as published by the rating agency.

The S&Pf Fund's rating method comprises of 19 rating levels from AAA to CCC-, The master scale assigns
each rating category a specified range of probabilities of default, which is stable over time. The rating
methods are subject to a regular validation and recalibration by S&P so that they reflect the latest
projections in the light of all observed defaults.

The Fund's rating scale is set out below:

Rating Associated Year 1 PD Percentage
2021 2020
AAA 0.0040% 0.0046%
Ad+ 0.0066% 0.0076%
Ak 0.0124%, 0.0137%
AA- 0.0256%, 0.0286%
A+ 0.0403% 0.0449%
A 0.0581% 0.0696%
A- 0.0817% 0.0978%
BEE+ 0.1221% 0.1439%
BBB 0.1656% 0.1973%
BBEB- 0.2650% 0.3094%
BB+ 0.3757% 0.4427%
BB 0.6261% 0.7419%
BB- 1.1280% 1.2487%
B+ 2.29100%6 2.4417%
B 3.6807% 4.5755%
B- 7.6102% 8.6656%
CCC+ 14.4865% 15.9703%
cCcC 27.5795% 29.4341%
cCC- 52.5128% 54.2517%

D 1004%% 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)
Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Fund employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most common of these is
taking collateral or security for koans advanced. The Fund has internal policies on the valuation of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation but will generally take all collateral possible, whether capable
of independent valuation or not, to ensure that the borrower has much to lose by defaulting on the loan
and to incentivise the borrower to repay the loan or develop a strategy to repay the loan even in difficult
circumstances.

The Fund prepares a valuation of the collateral obtained as part of the loan origination process. This
assessment is monitored and reviewed periodically. The principal collateral types for loans and advances
are:

» Mortgages over properties

. Charges over business assets such as property, plant, equipment and mining rights, inventory,
bank accounts and accounts receivable

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities; and

. Personal and/ or corporate guarantees.

The Fund's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period
and there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Fund since the
prior period.

The Fund closely monitors collateral held for assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more
likely that the Fund will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses.
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HOTES TO THE FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)
18. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
1B.4 Credit risk (continued)
Finamcial assets that are credit-impaired (stage 3) and related cofiateral held 1o mitigate potential kases ane shown belcw!
31 Decernber 2021
Credit risk Maxirmum
exposurs fully exposurs for
mitigated which a credit
through oo- loss can be
Gross loans funding  incurred for the Carrying Present value of
recalvabila agreements Fund Expected credit Amount Collateral taken
lsses
uso uso uso uso uso uso
Credit-impaired
Assets — Amortised cost B64,320,348  {62,667,376) 801,652,972  (375,775,615) 425877357 494,321,278
Crddit-impained
Assels = Tair vale through profit
or kss 109,033,975 - 109,033,975 = 109,033,975 109,033,975

*BFML guaranteed LISD 11,886 567 {2020: USDr 11,865,455) of the value. BRML will buy any shortfall in the deal
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
[CONTINUED)
1B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
1B.4 Credit risk (continued)
31 December 2020
Credit rick  Maodmum exposung
exposure fully  for which a oredit
mitigated lcrss can bae
through co- incurred for the
Gross lpans fundging Fund Carrying Present value of
recehvabie agroements Expecied credit Amount Cofateral taken
losss
usD ush uso uso usp usD
Credit-impaired
Ascets - Amartised o0st 766,052 267 {61,701,056) 704,251,211 (223, 775,745) 450,575,466 1,559, 702,268
Credit-impaired
Assets - fair value through profit or
loss 141,222,805 - 141,232,508 . 141,222,808 141,222,809
*BFML guarantesd USD 11,859,455 of the value, BFML will buy any shortfall in the deal,
Page &7

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets are assessed based on their credit ratings as published by Moody's or by an eguivalent
public rating agency. P-1 is the highest possible short-term rating.

Financial assets are classified within the range of P-1 to P-3. Financial assets which fall outside this range
are classified as not rated. The Fund's cash and cash equivalents are classified between P-1 and P-3, while
its loans receivable, other receivables, loan receivable from related party and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are classified as not rated in 2021 and 2020.

Each counterparty and facility must be approved by the Fund's credit committee before a debt security is
issued. Each debt security has collateral written into the contract, collateral being commodities, minerals,
fixed asset, guarantees and share pledges. On default of the debt securities, the fair value of the collateral
is transferred to the Segregated Portfolio where it is more efficient and cost effective while for some other
facilities which have defaulted, work around solution is favored as opposed to Investment Manager taking
over the collateral.

The commadity financed by the Fund will serve as collateral for the loan for the duration of the loan
contract. If, at any time during the loan contract, the aggregate value of the collateral falls below an
average of 105% of the aggregate value of the loan, the Fund will be entitled to call upon the counterparty
to provide further security for such shortfall, provided that the shortfall is more than USD 10,000, No calls
were made in the current year or prior year.

121/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page 68

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

18, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Recoverability assessment for stage 3 loans

Refer to note 5 for explanation on assessment of recoverability for stage 3 loans.

The following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit risk exposure for financial assets
with external credit ratings as of 31 December 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
usoD uso

Cash and Cash equivalents

P-1 78,412 79,212

P-3 41,190,972 13,842,463

Unrated* 5,068,024 44,103,931

46,337,408 58,025,606

All cash and cash equivalents are neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 3 months.
Other receivables

2021 2020
uso uso
Non-rated 3,347,845 1,470,241

All other receivables are neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 6-12 months,

Loan receivable from related party

2021 2020
uspD usD
Mon-rated 4,848,194 2,843,821

Loan receivable from related party is neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 6-12
months. There has been repayment amounting to USD 1,341,533 post year end.

Amount due from broker

2021 2020
uso usD
MNon-rated 15,257,647 4,615,950

Amount due from broker is neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 6-12 months,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.4 Credit risk (continued)
Concentration of credit risk
31 December 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total Rating
uso uso uso uso uso
BEB- and
Low Risk 124,886 - - - 124,886 above
Medium Risk 46,922,870 - 138,620,536 - 185,543,406 B- to BB+
High Risk 16,547,506 76,764,027 772,066,411 - 865,377,944  CCC+ and
behow
63,595,262 76,764,027 910,686,947 - 1,051,046,236
31 December 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total Rating
LSD sp UsD UsD LIsSD
EBE- and
Lewy Risk - - - - - above
Medium Risk 73,438,025 - 95,182,962 - 168,620,987 E- to BB+
High Risk 14,192,881 96,453,749 741,703,831 8,687,227 851,037,688 CCC+ and
bedow
87,630,906 96,453,749 836,886,793 8,687,227 1,029,658,675
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(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.4 Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk (continued)

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The counterparties to the Fund's investment in cash are well known and reputable and do not expose the
Fund to significant credit risk, even if AfrAsia Bank Ltd is an unrated custodian amounting to USD
5,068,024 (2020: USD 44,103,931).

1t is the Company's policy to diversify its investment portfolio of each Segregated Portfolio by investing in
various classes of investments with various strategies to limit the volatility and risk if one sector, market or
company could suffer a major downfall which could significantly and adversely affect the owerall
performance of the Fund. There are internal limits set up in terms of country exposure risk, commodity
limit and sector limit. This is monitored by the Investment Committee whereby prior to the presentation of
any potential deal, the country, commodity and sector limit are reviewed so that the Fund is not heavily
exposaed nor breach any of its internal limit. The concentration limit is also reviewed at board level on 2
quarterly basis to be able to assess the overall book. Refer to note 18.9 for investment restriction breach,

The table below sets cut the credit risk exposure as a percentage of net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable preference shares to counterparties of financial assets as of 31 December:

Counterparty exposure 2021 2020
%% %o

Loan counterparty 1 11% 12%
Loan counterparty 2 6% 8%
Loan counterparty 3 6% 7%
Loan counterparty 4 6% 6%
Loan counterparty 5 5% 6%
Loan counterparty 6 5% 5%
Other counterparties 61% 56%
100% 100%

Other counterparties consisting of 619% (2020: 56%) of credit risk are made up of amounts due from 81
(2020; 96) entities. None of the other counterparties individually contribute more than 5% (2020:5%) to
the 61% (2020: 56%) total.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.5 Capital risk

The Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares. The
amount of net asset attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares can change significantly
menthly, as the Fund is subject to monthly subscriptions and quarterly redemptions, as well as changes
resulting from the Fund's performance. The Fund issues four classes of redeemable shares (B1, B2, B3 and
B4), which are redeemable at the holder’s option and have identical rights but different terms.

Bl share class was listed on the Irish Stock Exchange until 13 September 2021, Further to the exit strategy,
the Company was delisted on 13 September 2021. While B2 share class contains a lockup period where
the shares may not be redeemed prior to the third anniversary of the subscription, B1, B3 and B4 shares
may be redeemed at the option of the holder on each redemption day. The Fund’s objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for investors,
provide benefits for other stakeholders and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
the investment activities of the Fund. To maintain the capital structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the
following:

- Monitor the level of monthly subscriptions and quarterly/bi-annually redemptions relative to the assets it
expects to be able to liquidate within a calendar quarter.

- Redeem and issue new shares in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Fund, which include
the ability to restrict redemptions.

- The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital based on the value of net assets
attributable to redeemable participating shareholders.

- Suspension of redemptions and subscriptions of the Fund effective 31 March 2020, The suspension will
end on the date on which the Board declares an end to the Suspension. This is in accordance with the
terms of the private offering memorandum.

18.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
liabilities.

The main liquidity risk to the Fund arises from the redemption requests of investors and repayment on
loans to provide liquidity. The holders of redeemable participating shares are entitled to redeem part or all
their capital which exposes the Fund to the liquidity risk of not meeting this obligation.

The liquidity is limited to the receipt of 2 90-day withdrawal notice from investors (except for dass B2) and
is dealt with by managing the duration of the loan book. The net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares are payable every calendar quarter. B2 share class contains a lockup period
which is 3 years. Most of the operating expenses are dealt within management fees and are paid to the
Investment Manager and hence is not considerad to be risky. Operating expenses are paid out of interest
income received from the loan counterparties. Co funding is not considered risky as repayment is made to
the cofunder only when the underlying counterparty has repaid back to the Fund.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.6 Liguidity risk (continued)

If redemption requests on any redemplion day equal or exceed 30% of the oulstanding aggregate
redeemable participating shares in issue on that redemption day, the directors may elect to restrict the
total number of redeemable participating shares to be redeemed to 30% of the outstanding aggregate
redeemable participating shares in issue on that redemption date, in which case all redemption requests
will be scaled down pro rata to the size of that request. The balance will be redeemed at the discretion of
the directors on the next succeeding redemption day or any redemption day thereafter when the directors
deem that the fund has sufficient liquidity to pay those redemptions provided that the redemptions will be
processed in priority to any requests received thereafter. This is currently being mitigated by suspension
on redemption.

The Fund is also exposad to the risk of not meeting its obligations to co-funders. This is however a minor
risk, as co-funders are repaid when the Fund receives repayments from its clients.

The table below summarises the Fund's exposure to liquidity risks at undiscounted figures. It includes the
Fund's assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the
earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and from statement of financial position date. The
unlisted debt securities are shown net of provision for expected credit losses. Refer to note 5 (loans
receivable) for the net values.

Page T3
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLID OF RARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
18. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
18.6 Liguidity risk {continsed)
31 December 2021
3 Months or 3toé Gin12  1todyears Undatoed Total
less monkths months
Assets usD (L] uso uso uso usD
LS idddrvalis - Amodtitsd oot 3,118,782 152376 3, 775455 146087 487 3B5. 747,573 638,881,673
Financial agsets at Tair vales theough profit or ko - 14,751,286 - - 109,033,975 123,785,261
Ot recehaables excuding prepayments - . 3347845 - - 3,347 845
Loan recenable from related party - - 4,848,104 - - 4,848,194
Arrdmnl due feom Droker - 7,000,000 N = B.257 647 15,257,647
Cach il cBEh quivhlents 46,337 408 - - - - 45,337 408
Total assets 49456190 21,903,662 11,971,494 246,087,487 503,039,195 832,458,028

126/143



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page T4
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTEOLIO
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 {CONTINUED)
18. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
186 Liquidity risk {continued)
3 Months or Ita b Gbo 12 1 to & years Wl abied Total
[[=13 months months
uso uso uso uso uso uso
Liabikities
ACCTiahd EDENGES [1,441,995) - - - - [1,441,995)
Loans payalles (985,911) - - (30917,960) (61,729,842) (93,634,723)
Cther payabies (3.560,277) - - - - (3,560,277)
Redemption paiable (1,239,330) (1,023,853} (4,635,803) - - (6,898,985)
Met assets sttributable bo holders of regiesmable
partiicating shaes® (17,273487)  (4,682,155) (38,044,358) - (66G6,936,483) (726,936,483)
Total liabilities [24,502,000)  (5706,008) (42,680,161) (30,917,969) (728,666,325 (83Z47TL464)
Laguidity rigk exposuns 24,954,190 16,197,654 (30,708,667) 215,169,518 (235627,132) {14,435)

*The Fund does not expect 1o piy out redemptions until assets ane realised, for which there & no estabihed timeling, Given the dinsctons’ rights to restrict nedemptions
the iliquid rature of the investment portfalia. The Fund expects the exit Strategy prooss (o e concludad by the end of 2025 with Some of the deals which might go
beyond 2025, The Irvestment Hanager has paid out LISD 50,000,000 a5 at date of signature of the financials. Given that the Investment Harager does not have full
visidity On thit remaining Dalance af this slage, wa have categoriced same under Ducket undated.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINAMCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLID OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
[CONTINUED)
18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
186 Liguidity risk {continwed)
31 Decernber 2020
IMonths & 3 1o 6 maaths 6o 12 months 1t 4 years Lindated Total
b=z,
Assets ush ush ush uso uso usn
Loans recenvabie = Amortised ool 109,501,168 15,747,078 30,881,411 249,839,520 343,138,380 4B 407 557
Financisl asseds at fair value through profit o koss 13277122 i 5728586 113,641,392 19,731,109 153378009
Other recetvables eachuding prepayments - 1,470,241 - E 1,470,241
Lesian recesheadile from related party - 2,543,821 = & 2543821
Amourt due from broker 4,615,550 - . - E 4,615,550
Cash and cach equivalents 58,025,606 * * * = 58,025,606
Total assets
186,719,846 15,747,078 40,924,089 A3 480912 361,869 489 968,741, 154
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINAMCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
{A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
{CONTINUED)
18. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18,6 Liquidity risk {continwed)
3 itk of Iwé Bip 12
brss monkhs months 1 b0 4 years Lingated Tokal
uso usD ush usD uso ust
Lt
Accryed eepenses. (2,055,163) - . - . (2,059,153)
Loans and other payables (2,825,162) (54%4,650) (19.867601) (31,719331)  (#4,209454) (104,106,198}
Capital contribution réeceived in sdvanos (1,789,950) = = ] & (1,789,950)
et bty alfributable to holders of redeemabie
participating shares " . . = (BEQEITITE)  (BGOE1TI7Z)
Total habdities (6674.275)  (5444,650) (19.887.601) (31,719.331) (905.046626) (965,772.483)
Lipadiy rigk exposure
180,045,571 10302428 1036458 33,761,581 (43107137 .05
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)
18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.7 Foreign currency risk

The Fund enters transactions that are denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, primarily
in US dollars (USD). Consequently, the Fund is exposed to risk that the exchange rate of its currency relative
to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the fair value or future

cash flows of the Fund's financial assets or financial liabilities denominated.

The net asset value per share is computed in USD. Cther than cash and cash equivalents, all financial
instruments are denominated in USD. The Fund, thus foreign currency risk is limited to bank account,

The following is an analysis of foreign currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2021:

Monetary
assets

2021
usD

South African Rand 1,631
Euro 1,096,240

Zimbabwean dollar 4,084

Monetary Net
liabilities Exposure
2021 2021

usb usp

- 1,631
(1,045,288) 50,952
(1,407) 2,677

The following is an analysis of currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2020:

Monetary

assets
2020
uso

South African Rand 671

Eurg 1,200,234
Zimbabwean dollar 4,203

Sensitivity analysis

Monetary
liabilities MNet Exposure
2020 2020
uso uso
(1,863) {1,192}

(1,315,525} (115,291)

- 4,203

At 31 December 2021, had the US dollar strengthened by 10% (2020: 10%) in relation to all currencies,
with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares
for the year would have increased by the amounts shown below. A 10% weakening of the US dollar against
the below currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the financial statement

amounts shown below, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

2021

uso

South African Rand +f- 163
Euro 5,095

Zimbabwean dollar 4f= 268
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18.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.8 Geographical risk

Geographical risk refers to the uncertainty associated with Investing in a particular country, and more
specifically the degree to which that uncertainty could lead to losses for investors, This uncertainty can
come from any number of factors including political, economic, exchange-rate, or technological influences.

Below are tables describing the geographical risk of loans and receivables based on counterparty's country.

Carrying % of Carrying % of
amount NAV amount MNAY
2021 2021 2020 2020

uso usD
Australia 26,977,687 2.38% 22,261,109 1.96%
Botswana 4916821 0.43% 20,257,906 1.79%
Brazil 3,772,511 0.33% 3,327,669 0.29%
Democratic Republic of the Congo 26,157,111 2.% 35,510,572 3.13%
Egypt 6,511,784 0.57% 6,440,744  0.57%
Guernsey 14,251,005 1.24% 12,621,184 1.11%
Guinea 15,565,854 1.36% 13,227,943 1.17%
Ghana 108,213,519 9.45% 125,097,425  11.03%
Hong Kong 833,539 0.07% 776,468 0.07%
Ivory Coast 4,939,420 0.43% 4,579,102 0.40%
Kenya 167,352,381 14.62% 152,968,820  13.49%
Madagascar - 0.00% 14 0.00%
Mauritius 20,717,084 1.81% 22,432,522 1.98%
Mozambique 836,012 0.07% 1,417,580 0.13%
Migeria 9,619,190 0.84% 8,757,154 0.77%
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(CONTINUED)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.8 Geographical risk (continued)

Mamibia
Metherlands
Republic of Congo
Senegal
Singapore

South Africa
South Sudan
Tanzania

Uganda

United Arab Emirates
United States
United Kingdom
Zambia

Zimbabwe

Malta

British Virgin Islands

Sweden

Total loans and receivables

Carrying
amount
2021
uso

20,606,289

26,772,779

4,065,871

396,768,934

935,323

36,787,722

10,951,244

14,751,286

10,400,690

51,211,054

66,461,761

25,726,992

43,667,185

13,265,541
11,644,370

1,144,680,959
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%o of NAV
2021

0.00%

1.80%

0.00%

2.34%

0.36%

34.66%

0.08%

3.21%

0.96%

1.29%

0.91%

4.47%

5.81%

2.25%

3.81%

1.16%

1.02%

100%
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Carrying
amount
2020

usD

4 607,377
18,429,887
47,291,623
25,168,840
3,099,462
411,247,081
1,121,458
34,846,887
10,765,109

12,155,401

7,482,157

58,629,157

21,633,762

40,462,349

3,218

7,144,894

1,133,764,874
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O of NAV
2020

0.41%

1.63%

4.17%

2.22%

0.27%

36.27%

0.10%

3.07%

0.95%

1.07%

0.66%

5.17%

1.91%

3.57%

0.00%
0.63%

100%



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooooood

Page 80

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.9 Investment restriction breaches

The Fund breached some of the POM restrictions as per the table below. This i mainly due to the size of
the Fund and the asset class/ tenor in which investment were being made. Where any restriction is
breached, the Investment Manager must ensure that corrective action is taken except where the breach is
due to appreciations or depreciations in the value of investments, changes in exchange rates, or by reason
of the receipt of rights, bonuses, benefits in the nature of capital or by reason of any other action affecting
every holder of that investment.

As per Private Offering Memorandum ("POM™) 2021 2020

The Fund will not invest more than 509 of the Net Asset Value in 84.06% 64.50%
non-agricultural general goods.

The Fund will not invest more than 20% of the Net Asset Value in any]
one country, with the exception of South Africa where the Fund may| 34.66% in | 36.25% in South
invest up to 30% of the Net Asset Value South Africa Aftica

The Fund will maintain & holding in cash of at least 2.5% of the Net|]  2.50% 2.50%
Maset Value at all times

Cash balances were in line with the minimum requirement of 2.5% as per POM a5 at 31 December 2021
and 2020.

As part of the exit strategy of the Fund and compulsory redemption, the Investment Manager notifies the

Company that the investment objective of the Fund is no longer reasonably achievable in accordance with
the investment policies and restrictions.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.10 Concentration risk

It is the Fund's policy to diversify its investment portfolio by investing in various classes of investments with
various strategies to limit the volatility and risk if one particular sector, market or company could suffer a
major downfall which could significantly and adversely affect the overall performance of the Fund. There
is internal limit set up in terms of country exposure risk, commodity limit and sector limit. This is monitored
by the Investment Committee whereby prior to the presentation of any potential deal, the country,
commadity and sector limit are reviewed so that the Fund is not heavily exposed nor breach any of its
internal limit. The concentration limit is also reviewed at board level on a quarterly basis to able to assess
the overall book.

The table below sets cut the concentration risk of the sectorsfindustry that the exposure lies at 31

December:

2021 2020

Metals 17% 17%
Equipment 11% 13%
Coal 16% 14%
FMCG 9% 10%
Fertilizer 8% bix
Logistics 8% 8%
Cement 7% 7%
Crude Oil 6% 5%
Other commodities 18% 18%
100% 100%

Other commadities consisting of 18% in 2021 and 18% in 2020 is made up of 23 (2020: 20) commaodity
sectors such as chemicals, petroleum products, juice, textile, fruits, minerals, sugar, vanilla, nuts and seeds,
Mone of the other commodities individually contribute more than 3% (2020:3%) to the 18% (2020: 18%)
total.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
18.11 Fair value estimation

The financial instruments below are measured at fair value through profit or loss, The following table
presents the movement in level 3 instruments for the yvear ended 31 December 2021:

Level 3 roll
2021 2020
uso usp
Opening balance 153,378,209 61,311,948
Met change in unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (29,325,427) 30,979,841
Fealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,172,690 7,154,918
Profit margin 1,417,014 -
Loans reclassified from amortised cost to fair value through profit or
loss - 29,835,834
Loans transferred to Barak Africa Trade Finance Segregate Portfolio - (751,5628)
Loans disbursed 52,008,545 35,910,054
Repayment {55,865,770) (11,062,758)
Clesing balance 123,785,261 153,378,208

The table below analyses these financial instruments per valuation method.
Fair value Valuation technique

usD usp
2021
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 123,785,261 Market value
2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 153,378,209 Market value

The fair value of the loans receivable at FVTPL is based on the market price of Iron Ore as recoverability
of the loan from the counterparty by the Fund is based on the sale of the Iron Cre. The Iron Ore is sold at
market price,
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.11 Fair value estimation (continued )

The valuation methods are characterised as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that is observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

- Level 3: Input for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
input).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.
If fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on observable
inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement in its entity requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by
class) measured at fair value:

Significant Significant

Quoted observable unobservable
market prices inputs inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
uso usoD uso uso
2021
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 123,785,261 - - 123,785,261
2020
Ascels
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 153,378,209 . - 153,378,209

They are classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of uncbservable inputs, being the probability
of recoverability of the loan.
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(CONTINUED)

19. GOING CONCERN ASSESSMENT

As result of the COVID-19 impact management has noted a significant portion of its borrowers” showing
signs of cashflow and liquidity problems due to supply chain disruption and economic downturn, which
resulted in the borrower’'s default on their repayment agreements. These matters indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty relating to going concern, which may cast significant doubt about the Fund’s ability
to continue as a geoing concern. The directors of the Fund suspended the voluntary redemption rights of
shareholders in the Fund on 30 March 2020 to protect the Portfolio’s value to ensure that all shareholders
in it were treated equally. From the date of the suspension to the date of signing of the financial statements,
the directors have ensured that the Fund’s Investment Manager has continued to manage the investment
portfolio of the Fund with a view to maintaining investor value and protecting the asset base of the Portfolio.

The directors, on advice from the Investment Manager, do not currently belisve that the circumstances
that gave rise to the suspension are likely to cease to exist in the short to medium term (being at least 18
months from date of signing of the financial statements} and therefore the suspension will very likely remain
in place for at least that period, maybe longer,

To maximise shareholder value, the Investment Manager intends to realise the loans receivable in a
controlled manner rather than on a “fire-sale” basis. This process will, over time, convert the assats to
cash,

The Portfolio will then, via a process of compulsory redemptions, return distributable cash to investors on
a pro-rata basis as part of the winding down of the Portfolio.

Management is dedicated to sustaining a transparent outlook and providing a solid foundation during the
current phase of the Fund’s life cycle.

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the yvear ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 there have been no investor complaints against the
Fund. There is currently no ongoing litigation and as such there are no contingent liabilities up to the date
of issue of these financial statements.

21. KEY EVENTS

During the year 2021, three of the Company’s directors, Mr. Nicolas Hardy, Mrs. Catherine Mcllraith and
Mr. Swvetoslav Todorov Varadzhakov resigned. Mr. Michael Pearson was appointed as director of the
Company on 27th May 2021,

The Fund paid, by way of compulsory redemption, a total of USD 20,000,000 to all shareholders of the
Fund in proportion to their sharehcldings as of 30 September 2021,

The Company was delisted from the Euronext Dublin Stock Exchange on 13 September 2021 as part of the
exit strategy of the Fund.
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22, COVID-19

The financial year 2021, the second of Africa’s battle against COVID-19, proved to be an extremely difficult
one, heightened by the increasingly severe third and fourth waves of the pandemic, and global COVID-19
vaccine inequity. For WHO African Region countries, these challenges were compounded by a range of
other humanitarian crises, with 38 of the 47 countries experiencing some level of food shortages. Reasons
varied from extreme weather events to political crises or conflicts, further hindering the pandemic response.

Like many other private credit providers, the Fund has experienced significant portfolio disruptions due to
increased transport costs and shipping backlogs due to the global pandemic. The operating costs of the
Fund remains reasonably static as the Fund proceeds with its soft exit strategy, prioritising cash
recoupments from borrowers and distributions back to our investors,

Impacts caused by the slowdown in economic activity and China's subsequent appetite for steel-related
products being rapidly reduced, the iron ore pricing declined, and the margin was further squeezed with
the increasing freight charges.

The Investment Manager has been assessing the respective borrower companies to provide a quantitative
indication of the magnitude of COVID-19 impact to performance. The purpose of this risk assessment has
been to place emphasis on the working capital risk cycles and impact to business supply chains (both
operationallty and trade-related metrics). The classification thereaf has since been allocated to three metrics
of High, Medium and Low Risk. The requirement to be allocated to such a metric is based on the material
impact that each cycle would experience during the COVID-19 pandemic (and potentially beyond,
depending on situational case-by-case analysis and scenario planning). A sensitivity parameter approach is
used if only certain cycles are impacted and thus allocated to the respective risk metric,

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The administration agreement with MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) 2 Limited was terminated on 15 March
2022, The Fund has appointed Vistra Alternative Investments {Mauritius) Limited as the” Mew
Administrator” effective as from 15 March 2022,

As at date of signature of the financial statements, the Fund paid, by way of compulsory redemption, a
total of USD 60,000,000 to all shareholders of the Fund in proportion to their shareholdings as of 31
December 2021 and 31 March 2022 respectively.

The war in Ukraine is already affecting the world economy. Daily measures of uncertainty have increased,
but by much less than during the Covid pandemic. Measures of subjective uncertainty derived from firm
surveys have also increased, particularly regarding inflation. Factors such as energy use, demand, trade,
and ownership are important determinants of business uncertainty regarding the conflict. The implications
of this uncertainty for businesses are still unclear, although the consequences of a protracted conflict will
likely have adverse effects on multiple economic outcomes.

There are no other material subsequent events as at the date of issue of this report.
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MHA *
2022 29
* MHA MHA

MHA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
(A SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO OF BARAK FUND SPC LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated
Portfolio (a Segregated Portfolio of Barak Fund SPC Limited) (the *“ Fund” ), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the statement of financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2021, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to notes 3 and 5 of the financial statements; at 31 December 2021, the Fund
held a provision for expected credit losses of USD 382,014,025 which management believes
represents the best estimate of the present value of all expected cash shortfalls. The actual
realizable value may be materially different. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

140/143



EDINETOO OO
00O000000000000000(E35219)
OoOoO0oo0o00o0ooooo

We draw attention to Note 2 and 5 in the financial statements, which indicate that a

significant portion of the Fund"s borrowers showed signs of cashflow and liquidity problems
with several borrowers defaulting on their repayment agreements during the year. We have also
noted the Fund®"s suspension of subscriptions and redemptions to preserve its capital base. As
stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2,
5 and 20, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Investment Manager®s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor-®s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor™s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®s financial reporting
process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of our Report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund"s shareholders
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come.

MHA CAYMAN *
29 June 2022

* MHA Cayman is the trading name for MHA Maclntyre Hudson Cayman Ltd, a subsidiary of MHA Maclntyre Hudson, the UK member

firm of Baker Tilly International.
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